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SENSITl'fE SEOURITY INFORMATION 

�--·· ··------ ··--------------·-------------

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTl\flTY 

Type of Activity: 
�Personal Interview D Telephone Interview 0 Records Review 

, 0 Other 
Activity or Interview of: 

I°' l I 
Master Behavioral Detection Officer {MBDO) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
Phone 808-382i .,., I 

! Date and Time: 

January 24, 2012 

Conducted by; 

Special Agents Philip Spampinato and 
Joseph M. Viviano 

·--------------·-·· Location of Interview/Activity: 
Transportation Security Administration Office 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
300 Rodgers Blvd. Suite 45 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

Subject Matter/Remarks 

MBDO (i0 •• • !was interviewed regard�tions of racial profiling and other 
improprieties directed at the HNL BOO program. �started as a Tran · n Security Officer 
(TSO) in August. 2007, and entered t rogram in November, 2008. 1.-0_1 '-�. ·�.L.141.l�c.v., 
assi ned to the mornin shift at HNL. '}•,& aid that he occasionally works with 1 j ___ ..,...,.....,, 0 1�1 n '" when their shifts overlap but has no established 
relationships with them other than work contact. 

Us familiar with the KITV4 news report claiming racial profiling and other issues at the BDO 
program at HNU'°K151 �tated that he has no knowledge of racial profiling at HNL by the BOO 
program or by BOO in the program. l1tHi& !further stated that he � witnessed any such 
behavior that would target one ethic group vs. another ethic group. �continued to state that 
there is no hint of racism of any kind among feJlow BDOs or Hawaiian population in general. 

I"' 1 }advised that the individuals portrayed as "whistleblowers'' on the KITV4 report must have 
been persons who were familiar with the BDO program. 
Ca9e Number: 

M-1 2-0755 
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SENSITIVE S!CUftl'f'f INFORMATION 

MEM ORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation .�heet) -�----

l(l;))(t>j I .... __ 
_,

also addressed the additional allegations mentioned in the KITV4 report as follows -

• liPKfl> ladvised that at he is 80% sure of one of t was portrayed as a 
whistle blower in the KITV4 news report was BOO (bJ{e) l(tlJl6> !explained that he 
believes it is BDOl!b)(S) talthough disgurse ue o 1s choice of words used and 
his mannerism while being interviewed on the KITV4 re�arter Ha"':ever, after the report aired 
and the talk around the water cooler revealed that BDO[b)CB) _I was the second individual 
portrayed as the whistleblowers appearing in the KITV4 news report. 

• l(fo<t3l lstated tbaj he h�s never heard the term "mexecutioner" in passing in reference to a 
TSA em loyee.!��--_J has never heard the aforementioned term used by any BDOs at HNL. 
bJ( i is aware that there is a professional fighter by the name of Manny Pacquaio who is 

e "mexecutioner" by his fans . 

• l(b)<ei lhas no knowledge or evidence of racial profiling by any BOO or TSO at HNL. He has 
never witnessed any such behaviors targeting one ethnic group vs. another ethnic group. 

• has never heard of any BDOs sleeping in a cot or sleeping while� He first 'i:-::=� ping allegation on the KITV4 news re ort. After the fact, � heard that 
brought the cot into the office for lbHGI to be used for an upcoming 

'---.....-...,...,--as cu a I advised that he has never wor e e overnight shift. 

• jlo> \ 6) �ad knowledge of a TSA employee testing positive for cocaine. He first heard of 
the allegation while traveling on the sh�ltf� bu� wh�n he overheard TSOs discussions 
cone rnin one of the 800 managers @! }l<til(M l testing positive for drugs. l(bl{$1 !stated 
that b)(S n recently reassigned out of the BOO program around the time of the 
allegation. rb 1 knew of this information prior to the KITV4 news report. • lm)(6} lhad knowledge of the allegation concerning a HNL BOO having some sort of 
DEA connection which resulted in seizures of suspect first heard of this 
allegation by coworker's discussions concerning BOO b)( l oductivity and 
success in his seizures. j(bHo) !advised that this was prior to him [bi( 1 ·oining the BOO 
program. l\bX6) lhad no other information to provide. 

• l' " l<6l lhas no information or evidence of sexual harassment or hostile work environment 
and has not been exposed to any of these issues at the HNL workplaceJM( 6) lopined that 
there will always be differences between various employees but overall he gets along well with 

Case N1.1mber: Case Title: 
M-12-0755 BOO Practices at HNL 
Revised February 28, 2006 

WARNING; THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS SENSI RITY INFORMA S CONTROLLED UNDER 49 CFR PART 1520. NO 
PART OF THIS DOCUMENT MAY BE R 0 PERSONS WITHOUT A NEED TOK , FINED IN 49 CFR 1520, EXCEPT WITH 
THE WRITTEN PERMISSION MINISTRATOR OF THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADM N WASHINGTON, DC. 
UNAUTHORIZED R AV RESULT IN CIVIL PENAL TY OR OTHER ACTION. FOR U.S. GOVERNMENT AG IC RELEASE IS 
GOVERNE .S.C 552. 

Rosemary.Law
Text Box
(b)(6)
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S�N!ITIYE SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
his colleagues. f"Hr,' lhas a very posltive.iir1p.ression Of the BOO .prog ram_a_n_d _t -he�B- D_O __ _ 
management at RNL. 

11" lis not aware thatf · ·Gi Is involved in some sort of snowboarding activities 
or  videos. He has never viewed the videos and is unaware of their content. 

f01(\' �as concerned about the SSI information that the two individuals provided the KITV4 
reporter placing the BOO program in jeopardy by releasing privileged information concerning 
their SOPs. Although this allegation and information is old and dated, he did not understand 
why the whistleblowers would release this information compromising the BOO operations. 

(11 11G kdvised that he was willing to take a polygraph to confirm the information he provided 
in this statement. 

At the conclusion of the interview. I 0 6 !provided a signed, sworn statement. 

Attached: 
Signed, sworn statement by MBDOI' ;• J dated January 24, 2012. 

Case Number: Case Title: 
M-1 2-0755 BOO Practices at HNL 
Revised February 28, 2006 
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" 

SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

I, d1 J having been duly sworn, hereby make the following statement to 

s� �(1})V1.�)1�f*\""-V /sit v lv��f'r(J �who has been identified to me a') a federal Jaw enforcement officer and special ( 
agent with the Transportatio� Security Administration, Office of Inspection. lam making this statement of my own free will, 

without any duress or coercion. 

• * * SEEATIACHEDSTATEMENT* *"' 

I have read this entire statement consisting of l/ pages. I have been given the opportl.lnity to tnakc any cllrrcctions 
necessary to make the statement accurate. Al I� infonnation contained in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 

m1sreprese1rtc:d anything contained 1n this stateme O 4" ot 1n ed,any mformat1on or ko�.1'.li.JU.W� my koowl<dgrnd h� Hof. I W>dm:""d th•t I m•yr groltod f 0< P.''i"'Y °' m•king fol" '""�'"" ifl h"' in-.tlo"llY 

that relates to the: matters under investigation or re 'lll:li 

Signed aml sworn to before m;ii1 is �day of �U H1 
/Jul_�, �VI ·==v::=::: 

Page I of _i_ 
Form INVD-S3 (Rev. 4/1/2007) 

,20_/£_ 

Special g 1 
Transportation Secun 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authnrity to administer oaths: 5 U.S.C. § 303 
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Statement of Judemar Pascual 
808-382-0375 
January 24, 2012 at HNL FSD Office 

I ,  ��""'-(''''��"':o.cu,\ am allowing SA Philip Spampinato to write this 
state e. 

\ . '"\., '-\ ' \'\_ 
----/ Date 

I have been employed with TSA since August 2007 as a TSO in Honolulu. In 
November 2008, I entered into the BDO Program at HNL 

I am currently assigned to the BDO full time day shift-4:00 am to 1 2:30 pm with 
RDOs as Sunday Monday. 

Sometime in November, 20 1 1 ,  I saw a KITV4 news report which alleged racial 
profiling and other improprieties by the HNL BDO program. 

I believed that the individuals portrayed as "whistleblowers" on the KITV4 report 
must have been persons who were familiar with the BDO program. I am 80 
percent sure that one of the whistleblowers was Michael Bothelo and through 
casual conversation amongst co-worker the other individual might have been 
BDO Wyatt Waro. 

I wish to point out that I have no outside connection or established relationships 
with the following HNL TSA employees - Wyatt Waro, Michael Bothelo other 
than daily work interaction due to overlapping shifts on Wednesdays . .  

Regarding the allegations made by the TSA whistleblowers in the KITV4 news 
report which aired in November, 201 1 -

• I believe I know one of the individuals who were portrayed as the 
whistleblowers who had appeared on the KITV4 news report in November, 
201 1 .  However, after the article aired the talk around the water cooler 
was that the two individuals were Michael Bothelo and Wyatt Waro. • I have never heard the te1111 "mexecutioner" used by BDOs at HNLs. I 
heard of this allegation on the KITV4 news report. I am aware that �'-1'-' professional fighter Manny Pacquaio's fans refer to him as the - � "mexecutioner". 
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I have no knowledge of racia! profiling at HNL by the BDO program oro 
members of the program. I have never witnessed any such behaviors that 
would target one ethnic group vs. another ethnic group. There is no hint 

""'---� of racism of any kind among fellow BDOs or the Hawaiian population in 
general. The Hawaiian culture here is very diverse. 

• I have no knowledge of any HNL BDOs sleeping in a cot and I did not 
witness any TSA employees sleeping on a cot or sleeping during their 
assigned shift at HNL. I first heard of this allegation on the KITV4 news 
r.eport. I have never worked the over shift. I found out after the KITV4 
report a·1red that r·�!€1• I brought the cot in tort"'

,

,, I to be 
used for an upcoming camping trip. 

• I had knowledge of a TSA employee testing positive for cocaine. I first 
heard of this on the tt!e bus when TSOs were discussing that one of 
the BOO managers 1 • •11111 tested positive for cocaine. f also knew 
that he had been recent y reassignment out of the BOO program. This 
was all prior to the KITV4 report. 

• I have knowledge of a HNL BOO having some sort of DEA connection 
which resulted in the seizures of unreported currency. I first heard of this 
by coworkers discussing

. 
his productivitf and success in seizures. I found 

out after the fact the BOO involved was 1"' '1J I This was all prior 
to when I started in the BDO program. However, I was interested in 
working with him to learn his techniques .. 

• I have no information of sexual harassment or hostile work environment 
and have not been exposed to either during my employment with TSA 
HNL. I believe overall everyone gets along pretty weir and I get along well 
\vith my colleagues. I currently have a very positive experience with the 
BDO program and the BDO management. 

• I was not aware that ll 1."u": 11 1lb lwas involved in some sort of · 

snowboarding activities or videos until after the KITV4 r�pol\. I have 
never viewed the videos and I am unaware of their content. 

• I am concerned about the SSI information that the two individuals provided 
the KITV4 reporter putting the BOO program in jeopardy by releasing [Jrivileged information concerning our SOPs. Although this allegation

. 
and 

nformation is old and dated, J do not understand why they would releasec:-
his information compromising the BOO operations. I ... '·_� · '_· ____ _.] 
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' ' 

n ' 

D 
At one time while working withlui� · 11 did question the way she 
assessed behaviors. However, we were trained differently on behaviors. 
It should be noted that the refresher team came in (September 2011) and 
retrained everyone. Although it is subjective, we have been on the same 
page since the training. 

• I am willing to take a polygraph in order to confirm my statemen 

\, .�'-----\. \L--

� !,) r-(\ \ __D \� \ -'Y\_\[\0.1 \'-)��-� 
'/or/ 
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U.S. Department ofHomeland Security 
Arlington, ,Virginia 22202 · 

Transportation 
Security . 

Admini strati.on 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (OI) is conducting an official investigation. As a result, OI 
is revfowing official records and/or have interviewed me in connection with this' 
investigation. I understand that the disclosure of these records and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520, except .with the written permission of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Administration, Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unautj1orized release may result in disciplinary action. 

PRlNfNAME SIGNA TIJ.R.E 
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ATTACHMENT 

# 36 
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SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Type of Activity: 

IX] Personal Interview 
0 Telephone Interview 
D Records Review 
0 Other 

Activity or Interview of: 

I 
' Behavioral Detection Officer (BOO) 

Honolulu International Ai� 
Phone number (808) 690LJ 

Date and Time: 

January 24, 2012 
9:04 a.m. 

Conducted by: 
Special Agents Akemi Wayne and Michael 
Striglers 

Location· of I nt9 rvi9w I Activity: 

Transportation Security Administration (TSA), 
Honolulu International Airport 
300 Rodgers Blvd 

�-------------------'-�-�r).9-1.L!ll),. HI 96815 ---·
--------� 

Subject Matter/Remarks 
Boo! •Ill !was interviewed about the allegations raised by reporter Keoki Kerr of KITV 
News 4 that HNL BDOs used racial profiling for screening, slept on the job, used a source at the Drug 
Enforcement Administration (DEA) to target passengers, and a BOO supervisor failed a drug test. 

r· ··r. I provided the fo11owing information: 

rl I I had been a BOO at HNL November 2009. 

Racial Profiling: 

• Ii •f,\JI I ..... ___ _,never saw any racial profiling being used as a means for getting referrals in the 
HNL BOO program . 

• t "'- lsaid the news video was referring to r 1• I because of the high number of 
LEO referrals for Hispanics,._. ___ 

• j11'''L' I suspected that I 1111"' Lsed race as a means of referrals because of the high 
number of LEO referrals from passengers with California ID's and Mexican passports. 

������������� ���������������������---- -·-
' Case Number. Case Tttle: 

M-12-0755 BOO practices at HNL 

{Revised 12-15-08) 
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___ ... .. .. , .. ------···· ... . 

SENSITrtE !ECUPUT'f INfiO"MATION 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

• lfOl(U Worked w'ith sool11 •[l�t la .
few times OV�� a period of two month� . He had issues 

with how quickly she assessed behaviors, but during that time he never saw her racial profile 
any passengers. Sometimes she did not discuss the behaviors with him because she was so 
focused the situation. 

• The passengers who l,.,..11"""J,..._1--.I referred were of multiple races and none of them were Mexican or 
Hispanic. He said l" '· f referrals during that time were based on behaviors from the 
passengers. I 0 i!li !never worked with @:!EE'] and never heard that he was racial 
profiling passengers. 

aw the newscast there was one hea set erson and one skinn ,--..,....---'!'"".'"""---:' . . 11 ''"' d l'l".61 • 1 • 10� hought that the persons tn the video were an ...._ ___ ,r ecause 
...._ _ _._s_,iz...,e, they are disgruntled, and the were not working in the BOO program . 
..._ ___ _..as about 50% sure it was m,•t.i' and about 40% sure it was� in the news • 
video. 

Mexicutioner: 
• The first timel1(' Ill lheard the term "Mexicutioner" as a BDO was from _l1m_( u_)----� 

andl'M'61 !during BDO on-the-job training. Occasionally 1 11' ., eard them use the 
term "Mexican destroyer" and "Mexican headhunter."fil ·01 land r1; u. ere referring to BOO I• 5 · · · 

and the a.m. shift BOO team. II::::-:":-:-----'--' • tated that he had used the term "Mexicutioner" a few times over the past 2 years in 
regard to '1' and the a.m. BOO shift's hEh refe�ral rates of Hispanic passengers. 

• He said "Mexicutioner" was a nickname for · i ., nd had not meant that she was racial 
profiling Hispanics. , 

• t" ' ' taid b� u5ad tbe !l:rw "Mexicutio ne(' a (fill( times and recalled that BDosLJ r t) i.vere present. 

Sleeping at work: 
• l'l 1 °1 !said the news report was the first time he heard about BDO's sleeping on a cot. He 

had never seen any BDO's sleeping at work or on a cot. 
• He had seen the cot before the news cast sometime in 2009. The cot was folded in an office. 

Case Number: CaseTrtle: 
M-12-0755 BOO practices at HNL 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SENSITl'o'E SECURITY INFORMATION 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

• l1r 1 fecalled that BDOj° •ti I said he loaned the cot to another BDO for a 
camping trip. 

• 110 hi � id not know why the overnight shift for BDO's was cancelled. 

Using DEA source: 
• l'0 '( 6 ' I said the news report was the first time he heard about a BOO having DEA as a 

source to get referrals and arrest 
• Beforelif'"' )became a BOO he was TSO at  a checkpoint when there was a big seizure 

by a BDO. He learned later that it was BOO It 101 lthat had the referral. 
..-------. • When he became a BDO later and was performing o - h -· training with 1'·11 

. • 1bllf� (1 •J111: Jasked h im h ow he got so many seizures. old that all of his 
seizures were based on behavioral observations �J '.Jt .!C• LJ ";:' ')I -t( 

Drug U""'s,.,, e .... : __ _ • f •'1' • I said the news report was the first time he heard allegations of drug use by a BOO in 
the program. 

• He never heard any talk about drug use by any BDO's nor was he aware of any BOO taking 
illegal drugs. 

Management: 
• He said that he felt comfortable g oing to management about racial profi ling and any other 

issue in the workplace . 

SSI Information: 
• Whenjn'1v- �aw the video, he did not recall if Sensitive Security Information was released 

about the. BDO program. awas willing to take a polygraph exam if needed 
I 

provided a signed sworn statement (attached). 

(Revised 12-15-08). 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
�-�r�� 'I'.ransl?ortation 
" 1- I Security ��J.��1 Administration 

, ,,, 
I, '--------...-------'' having been duly sworn, hereby-make the following statement to 

qA· �rq t<�--2A-�"!J·�-• who has be.en identified to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special 

agent with the Transportation Secllrity Administration, Office of Inspection. I arn making this statement of my own free will, 

without any duress or coercion. 

'�"'*SEE ATTACHED STATEMENT"' >t<"' 

I have read this entire statement consisting of � , pages. I have been given the opportunity to make any corrections 
necessary to lrulke the statement accurate. AH of the information contained in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge and belief. I widerstand that I may be prosecuted for perjury or making false· statements if I have intentionally 
misrepresented anything contained i n this statement. [have not intenti .. · · " · 

·-'· T 
that relates to the matters under investigation orreview. 

Page 1 of b 
Fonn h\'VD-S3 (Rev. 41112007) Attachment 321-5, page B 
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Pl My name isl bll«j l 1 have been a BOO with the Honolulu International LJ Airport since November 2009. 

I am being asked about the news cast and article accusing TSA BDO's of racial profiling 
and other allegations. 

I only saw the first news report, but did not read the article. When I heard the report I 
initially did not pay that much attention to it. When I saw the video there was one heavy 
set person and one skinny person. I think that based on circumstances the person in the 
video were!' "'" �nd 1' ' ' because of body size, they are disrurtlid 
and not here. I am about 50% sure it wa ' '-' and about 400/ci sure it was n)i· ' in 
the news video. 

When I first saw the video I thought they were talking about! um because of 
the high number of stats of LEO referrals for hispanics. I suspected that she was using 
race as a means of referrals because of the high number of LEO referrals from 
passengers with California !O's and Mexican passports. 

I worked with BOO E:J a few times over a period of two months. I had issues with 
how she was quickly assessing behaviors, but during that time I never saw her racial 
profile any passengers. Sometimes she would not discuss with me the behaviors she 
saw because she was so focused the situation_ Those passengers who were referred 
were of multiple races at that time. None of them were Mexican or Hispanic . 

f t-'tlll )referrals during that time was based on behaviors from the passengers. I have 
never worked with El E!D and never heard that he was racial profiling passengers. I 
never suspected that he was racial profiling passengers for SPOT referrals. 

I never saw any racial profiling being used as a means for getting referrals in the HNL 
BOO program. The BOO program get referrals based upon observations and behaviors 
from passengers. 

When I saw the video, I did not recall if SSI information was given out a_bout the BDO 
program. 

The first time I heard of the term mexicutioner was in a news article about two years ago 
in regard to Newark Airport allegations of racial profilln:. The first time I heard the term 
mexicutioner as a BOO was froml' 141 land[ - ( during BOO OJT 
training. They may not have used the exact term mexicutioner, I also heard them use 
the term Mexican destroyer and Mexican headhunter. They were referring to BDO I nll6 land the AM BOO team 

�used the term mexic�tioner a �ew times over the pa
_
st 2 �ears in regard tol .... b_'6 _ __.I �nd the AM BOO shJft of the high refenal rates of h1span1c passengers. It was a D z,oQ-� 
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�ame forE:':J not that she was really racial profiling Hispanics. When I said the 
mexicutioner a few times, I recalled BDOj h ·"· I E ]being present.. 

The news report was the first time I heard about BOO's steeping on a cot. I have never 
seen any BDO's sleeping at work. or on a cot. I did see the cot bmore tbe news csast 
sometime in 2009. It was folded up in an office and I recall soq"liu · lsaying 
he was loaning it to another BOO for a camping trip. I did not know why the overnight 
shift for BDO's were cancelled. 

The news report was the first time I heard about a BOO having DEA as a source to get 
referrals and arrest. Before I became a BOO in 2009, I was TSO screener at a 
checkpoint when there was a big seizure by a BOO. I learned later that it was BooEJ 

�hat had the referral. When I became a BOO later and was OJT with . � I asked him how he got some many seizures. · told me that all of hts 
seizures were based on behavioral observations ic • "' 1 ' : c s '' etc 

The news report was the first time I heard of drug use by a BOO in our program. I did 
not know if It was true or not and ! never heard any talk about drug use by any BDO's. I 
am not aware of any BOO taking Hlegal drugs. 

� I am willing to take a polygraph exam if needed l_J 
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U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Arlington,. Virginia 22202 · 

� Transportation Security . 

Administration 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (OI) is conducting an official investigation. As a result; OI 
is reviewing official records and/or have interviewed me in connection with this 
investigation. I understand that the disclosure of these records and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520, except .with the written permission of the .Administratori 
Transportation Security Administration, Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unauthorized release may result in disciplinary action. 

\llITI�SSED BY: 
)r-fl.i.IJI'. ,' \,!'IA(.,} NI� 

OI Official " 1' ..- Zt-(2.._ 
---- ·-· ·- -
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ATTACHMENT 

# 37 



TSA 15-00014 - 012552

Type ot'AC1:ivlty: ·
-

[gl Personal Interview 
D Telephone Interview D Records Review 
0 Other 

·-Activity Or frlterview of: ··· ·· 

I" j, I 

SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

·-·· .. ----. .. --�Dclte and Tirtie: 

January 25, 2012 

· ·----- . . ..  _ __ _,__Conducted by°: ······ 

Expert Behavioral Detection Officer (EBDO) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
Phone 808-2160 

Special Agents Philip Spampinato and 
Joseph M. Viviano 

· Location of Interview/Activity: 
Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
Office 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
300 Rodgers Blvd., Suite 45 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

Subject Matter/Remarks 

EBDollb l • Was interviewed regarding allegations of racial profiling and other 
improprieties directed at the HNL BOO program and officers. I 01'6 !started as a Transportation 
Security Officer (TSO) in September. 20�s Angeles International Airport {LAX) and entered 
the BOO program at HNL in April, 2007.� is currently assigned to the BOO evening shift (1:00 
pm - 11 :30 pm). 

f �r.1 lc1!ed tbatsoletim · _ ember. 2011, he was at home when he receiv ed a call from 
fellow BDO> 11 B O 1 ti• told(t\fii I about a KITV4 news report alleging racial profiling 
by the BOO force at HNL. lti�ti !aimed he located the on-line version of the report and then later 
recorded the 1 0:00 pm newscast on his DVR. 

l'[l" '' �as not able to identify the two individuals portrayed as the whistleblowers in the KITV4 
news report. Once he returned to work many of his co-workers were discussing the KITV4 report and 

Case Number. 

M-12-0755 
; CaseTitle: 
' BDO practices at HNL 

Revi5ed February 28, 2006 
LUSE ONLY 

WARNING: THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS SENSITIV INFORMATION LLED UNDER 49 CFR PART 1520. NO 
PART OF THIS DOCUMENT MAY BER PERSONS WITHOUT A NEED TO KNOW, AS R 1520, EXCEPT WITH 
THE WRITTEN PERMISSI DMINISTRATOR OF THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADMINISTRATION, C. 
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SEN!ITIVI!! S!!CURITY INFORIVIA I ION 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

they believed that o 1(u nd 1t l(ul were responsible for the allegations described ln 
the report. 

f '10• I indicated that BOO L.1t>_1 ___ -r,;:�LliWOl...J.(ot been working at HNL in the BOO program since 
June, 201 1 ,  to the best of his knowledge. has been off work claiming various medical issues 
and is currently on leave without pay. 

11611( lold 001 about an exchange between 1011( 1 and another BOO after the report had 
aired and everyone had returned to work. BDO 111' J approached L rsol•b '; While 
working at Checkpoint 1 ,  Inter-Island Terminal. (ti ti was no longer in the BOO program and 
was reassigned to the TSO work force.' '1m greeted 1 ·Ho! while attempting to mimic the distorted 
voice used by one of the whistleblowers in the KITV4 news report. According to � �id 
not respond or engage 11111 a, I but rather kept his head down while busying him�fwrrh paperwork. 

Based upon thel1t11"' lcontact andl1611131 I changed demeanorY\ 1 01 hs 70% sure that 
r 0 fis one of the two individuals portrayed as the KITV4 whistleblowers. 

Regarding the allegations of racial profiling, 1<0•11 !claims that the BOO force is consistently 
reminded by BDO management that racial profiling is a violation of the SOP. E 11(\� ladded that he 
has no direct evidence of or exposure to racial profiling by any member of BOO force at HNL. 

('Jllf)I .---------. Before the KITV4 report had aired, ;.o�fct'11 I use the 
term "Mexecutioner" in reference to BOO ·b :>• and 1' 1t·"ii [1w 1 bec1a1eo cn�t there is 
a jealousy factor among certain members o e orce due to the fact that some of the BDOs 
have better statistics and have received achievement awards for their performance. He asserted that 
there is a noticeable difference between the statistics of the AM shift and PM shift BDOs which has 
lead to rumor mongering and back-biting. 

After the KITV4 report aired,l 11" �earned of the term "Mexican hunters" but this was not talked 
about prior to the report. He has no knowledge of this term being used at HNL. 

fl fl�fi· . I regularly makes up nicknames for his co-workers and friends. 101< ' st ted that Fl 
regularly calls him I' 1 l" .I t·�0' !also call 1" !JI u • 01 and " 1 ·� because of his relationships with numerous women. 

Regarding the allegations made by the anonymous TSA whistleb!owers in the KITV4 news report 
which aired in November, 201 1 :  

Case Numbet: CaseTit!e: 

M-12-0755 BOO practices at HNL 
Revised February 28, 2006 

WARNING; THlS DOCUMENT CONTAINS SENSITIVE INFORMATION THA D UNDER 49 CFR PART 1520. NO 
ERSONS WITHOUT A NEED TO KNOW, AS OEFI 520, J;:XCEPT WITH 

THE WR!TIEN PERMISSlON OFT ISTRATOR 01" THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADMINISTRATION, WA 
ESULT IN CIVIL PENALTY OR OTHER ACTION. FOR U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCIES, PUBLIC RELE 
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· ·----------

SENSITPt'E SECtJRITY INfiOFtMl<TION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
--.--rl1,...,' ,.,...,--, 

---.,.fnever
.
witnessed and has no direct knowledge of racial profiling at Ht,iLby BDOs o-r -

any other TSA employee. He has never witnessed any behavior that would target one ethnic 
group vs. another ethnic group. 

• Before the KITV4 report had aired ,�heard a rumor that two HNL BDOs had been 
sleeping on a cot or sleeping on th� cannot confirm this allegation and had no further 
information to add. 

• Before the KITV4 report had aired, had heard a rumor that a TSA BOO manager 1•lfil J LJ'1 .. , 
� h ad failed a drug test. jrb)(EI) lhas no further information to add regarding this �. 

• Before the KITV4 report had aired l" d lhad heard from BDO El�that BDO� 
fr· 1' • J h ad a connection in  DEA which helped him discover suspected drug currency 
being transported by passengers. The rumors were based on a jealousy factor because 
Lovstedt had received awards and recognition for suspected drug currency seizures. 

• f' •j Jhas no knowledge or information regarding sexual harassment issues or potential 
hostile work environment.I , pad once spoken to by TSA 001 agent Keith Edwards 
about allegations of a hostile work environment but that was in regard to the earlier case of 
TSOs not performing required screening functions at HNL. 

• fti 1' lhas had a very positivf exo er�nce wit� th: BOO oroaram and BOO m'fiagement at 
HNL. He proclaimed that since..: �1' _. •1"' 

_ � , _ have left the 
BOO program there has been less much less drama within the BOO workforce and it is now 
enjoyable to come to work again. 

• I 0 '" lknew that sooj't"JJ1 j ;s involved in snowboarding videos. He was not sure 
to what extent he is invo.ved but �e HNL BOO farce are aware of the videos. BOO l1bl(6l jhad told L:__jtha�1t111'Q pas been using sick leave to take trips 

fo Canada for these snowboarding excursions. 

In closing I ti.f?t �s concerned that the BOO program has been d amaged and unfairly 
characterized by the KiTV4 report. He claimed that this report hr aiveo alblack eye" to all the 
conscientious BO Os at HNL. At the conclusion of the interview . . ' tr � provided a signed, sworn 
statement. 

(See attached signed, sworn statement by EBD0 ... l1t_-_1 ____ fd ated January 25, 2012. 

Case Number: 

M-12�0755 
Revised February 28, 2006 

Case Title: 

BOO practices at HNL 

RII.l��™ATION THA UNDER 49 CFR PART 1520. NO 
PART OF THIS DOCUMENT MAY BE REL.EASED S WITHOUT A NEED TO KNOW, AS DEFIN EXCEPT WITH 
THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ATOR OF THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY AOMINISTRAT!ON, WASHIN , 
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S\VOR� STATEMENT 
Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

I I "' I , having been duly swom, hereby make the following statement to � l/i \/iihNV T ��i4/\/i&-t.Jwho has been identified to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special � � -- . 

agent with th� Transportation Security Administration, Office of fnspection. I am making this statement of my own free will. 

without any duress or coercion. 

"'••SEE ATTACHED STATEMF.NT*"' * 

l have read chis entire statement consisting of d pages. l have been given the opportunity to make any corrections 
necessary to make 1he statement accurate. AI� information contained in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge and belief. ! undcr�tand that I may be prosecu!cd for perjury qr making false �taterncnls if I have intentionally 
m;=pc=""' "ything "'""in.ed io ilii• "'"mont �I inr��:, .. 0-i•o • • ";.<. ,,·. '"" Ihm 
!Mt rel•"' to the m•ttm "'d" '"�'"""'"" '"""L:...J 

. [ 

Page I of .. 

Form fNYD-S3 (Rev. 411 /2007) 

.ioff-_. 71.AllL:--
cia Agent 7JlF eRf1 

ransporlation Security Administration 

Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U .S .C. § 303 

<· 
L 
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Statement off°"':. I 
January 25, 20 1 2  at HNL FSD Office 

I .I' \\ul 
. , am allowing SA Joseph M. Viviano to write thfs 

statement for me. 

I .. ,.. I Ii� 
. 

I io:e!J- fill .. :ou)lr" 
CJ . '1%"/1 us 

I have been employed with TSA since September, 2002 as a TSO at I lonolulu 
·International Airpot l (HNt)) In April, 2007, I entered into the BOO Program. A>'.�� /�� /Jr7 ....... ((J/x . 
I am currently assigned to the BDO PM shift- 1 :00 pm to 11:30 pm with RD Os 
as Sunday, Monday and Tuesday. 

Sometime in November, 2011, I was at home when I received a cell phone call 
from fellow BDOl•r• 1/•1 I BOO� told me about a KITV4 report 
alleging racial profiling HNL BOO force. I got on the computer and I read the 
complete report. I later recorded the KITV4 news report with my DVR and 
watched the report with my wife. 

I was not able to determine the identities of the two individuals portrayed as the 
whistleblowers based upon the KITV4 video. Once I returned to work mrye°f ly 
fellow BDOs were discussing the KITV4 report and many believed it wa 11J � 1 

� andl )'t I who were responsible for the information related in 
report. 

I wish to point out that BOO l''l,fb I;;, 6 j has not been working at HNL in the 
BOO program since June, 2011 to the best of my knowledge. He has been off 
work claiming various medical issues and is currently on LWOP. 

AJt� report aired and we e erk, a co-worker {BDoj t1re1 I � approache d LTSO(t.'11' while working at Checkpoint 1,lnter-
lsland Terminal. '" '' was (° lons;1 in the Bf p pjogram and was 
reassigned to the TSO work force. · ' l0 greeted miP�1 while attempting to 
mimick the distorted voice used b one o the whistleblowers T tbe Kl,4 
report. According to ini "'1 did not respond or engage ·�M>• but rather 
kept his head down whi e busying himself with paperwork. 

Based upon the! '•'' · I ontact and " '16 ctions and changed 
demeanor, I am 70 % sure that (b 6' 1s one of the two individual� �ortrayed as the KITV4 whistleblowers Ll 

2// 
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G.egarding the allegations of racial profiling we are reminded consistently by BDO o�r) 
management. that this is a violation of the SOP. I have no direct evidence 
of racial profiling by any BOO force at HNL. 

Before the KITV4 report had aired, I did hear,
., h, 

l•u,n, luse the term "mexecutioner'' in rei
L-
e
-
re
_

n
_
c
_
e
-
to
_

B
_
D
_
O
�"l"f.6�--..a.,

and D 
P§TJ I wish to point out that there is a jealousy factor among certain members 
of the BOO force due to the fact that some of the BO Os have better 'statistics and 
have received achievement awards for their performance. There is a noticeable 
difference between the statistics of the AM shift and PM shift BDOs which has 
lead to rumor mongering and back-biting. 

After th.e KITV4 report aired, I was made aware of the term "mexican hunters" but 
this was not talked about prior to the report. I have no knowledge of this term 
being used at HNL. 

I' · ·' I regularly makes up nicknamE!s for his Cttf.wprkers..rnd friends. He 
reoularly calls me I 11•' , f' . I ll1 '(}, lcallsl_�c _ j;o ·�· I and calls I· 11t '1J 1°' I because of his relationships with numerous women. 

Regarding the allegations made by the TSA whistleblowers in the KITV4 news 
report which aired in November, 201 1 -

• I have never witnessed and have no direct knowledge of racial profiling 
at HNL by the BOO program or any members of the program. I have never 
witnessed any such behavior that would target one ethnic group vs. 
another ethnic group. 

• Before the KITV4 report had aired, I had heard a rumor of two HNL BDOs 
sleeping on a cot or sleeping on the job but I cannot confirm this allegation 
and have no further information to add. • Before the KITV 4 report had aired, I had heard a rumor that a TSA 
employee LI ) n I had failed a drug test.But I have no further 
information to add regarding this incident. 

• Before the KITV4 rei;iort had aired, I had heard from BOO D E:J that 
BOO j1LMf:1 I had a connection in DEA which helped him 
discover suspected drug currency being transpoJed by oassengers . The 
rumors were based on a jealousy factor becaus iu c lhad receive� o:.cognition for the suspected drug currency seizures. � 



TSA 15-00014 - 012558

(} t.1\u) 

have no knowledge or information regarding sexual harassment issues G 
or potential hostile work environment. I wish to point out that I was once 
spoken to by 001 agent Keith Edwards about allegations of a hostile work 
environment but that dealt with the earlier case of  TSOs not performing 
required screening functions. 

• Overall I have had a very positive experience with the BOO pro ram and 
DO an e en ere at HNL. I wish to point out that since .,.•b_w_._ILI 

andf0' '" l have left the BOO program there 
..,_a_s_,_e_e_n..,.e_s_s_m-uc...,......less drama within the BDO workforce and it i s  now 
enjoyable to come to work again. 

• I am aware of the fact that BDOl't·�l · lis involved in 
snowboarding videos. I am not sure to what extent he is involved but 
']any in the HNL B. DO force are awa� vldeos. BOO manager 
f"' ' !had told me once that� has been using sick leave 
to take trips to Canada. 

• I do find it troubling that the BDO program has been damaged and unfairly 
characterized by the KITV4 report. This report has given a "black eye;o" to � the conscientious BDOs at HNL. 

L_J 
� !JMOI 

/A j 6P // / ;J ( / /\. 1/f 
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Type of Activity: 
� Personal Interview 
D Telephone Interview 
D Records Review D Other 

·Activity or Interview of: 

SEW&ITIVI! aiCURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Date and Time: 

January 23, 2012 

Conducted by 

,. •i6 1 J Master Behavioral election Officer (MBDO) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 

Special Agents Philip Spampinato and 
. Joseph M. Viviano 

Phone 808-590411. r• · J Location of Interview/Activity: 

! Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
Office 
Honolulu International Airport 
300 Rodgers Blvd. , Suite 45 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

Subject Matter/Remarks 

MBDO 11 1 '1 lwas interviewed regarding allegations of �'ii�i.c.fofiling and other 
improprieties directed at the HNL BDO program officers at HNL. � started as a Tranjportatij n 
Security Officer (TSO) in February, 2005 and entered the BOO program in January, 2008. "1 ' is 
currently assigned to the BDO PM shift (1 :00 pm - 1 1  :30 pm) with RDOs as Thursday, Friday and 
Saturday. 

l01" !claimed that sometime in November 201 1 ,  he was on-duty at HNL when his BOO manager, I 11' I E:!] advised him and other BDOs of a KITV4 news report alleging issues about the HNL 
BOO program. BOO manager � instructed us to review the news article which alleged racial 
profiling and other issues. 

I saw the KITV Channel 4 news report and I concluded that BDO I l ' Ir · i was one of the 
individuals portrayed as a whistleblower. I am 70% sure thatl t- it l is one of the two individuals 
portrayed in the KITV4 news report because I recognized his mannerisms (speech, phrases used, 
stuttering and syntax). 
Case Number: 

• M-12-0755 
i CaseTitle: I BDO practices at HNL 

URITY IN FOR MA TIONIFOR E ONLY 
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SENSITIVI! SECU"ITI INFORlviA l'ION 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

Sometime in 2008, til{nl lk about BDOs in New Jersey who had been 
called "Mexican hunters". rri• 1 said that 10 tn• ·oked that there are BDOs at HNL called 
"Mexecutioners". tn.··u• jd1 missed the comment and had no knowledge of what he li1 � I was 
talking about . 

l(bl F, I . . declared 1hat the popular P.rofess1onal fighter Mann Pacquiao, also a Filipino, is known by his 
many fans as the "Mexecutioner". 1 · 1"'1 related th t' 1"i;, likes to assi n nicknames to many of 
his co-workers and friends. 1 '� claimed that 1111 6 refers to him the ..._t' _. l1_' ___ _, 

I' 11{11 I ind icated that KITV4 reported ._"_
•· A
_

'
---i:;;:::i;;;;:w=a:.ipas�u HNL as a passengerandjit" 

had brief contact with him. After this contac 1 told� thatl •ti I was his frie 
...
. n"""'d-. 

_ 

_, 

I 11n !advised that he andjm\61 lcwho is no I� the BOO progr� casual friends and 
they talk often about physical fitness and diet topics.L::_J has also helpedL_Jwork on some of 
his personal computer issues. 

l" '" l addressed the following issues and allegations raised by the TSA whistleblowers in the KITV4 
news report as follows -

• I '' ll f has never witnesse or has any knowledge of racial profiling by any members of 
the BDO program at HNL. •lllcf:i ays there is no targeting of one ethnic group vs. another 
at HNL by BOO program and these allegations are not credible. 

• I' oJ I has no knowledge of any HNL BDOs sleeping in a cot or sleeping on duty. 
He knew that a cot was brought in and placed in a storage closet to be used by a 
fellow BOO for some sort of camping trip. 

• 1'11116' lhas no knowledge of any TSA manager or employee testing positive for cocaine. 
He first heard of the allegation on the KITV4 report. He has no further information about 
this issue. 

• Before the KITV Channel 4 news reportl•l'J 0 lhad heard and seenU t' H01 imake 
comments about the award(s) and recognition that BOO 11'�.-., had received for suspected 
drug currency discoveries and the subsequent seizures. 1'.i t• made joking comments that 
r�' !must have some sort of DEA connection to account for his success in finding 
suspected drug currency. Nothing further to add. 

Case Number: M-12-0755 
I Case Title: 1 BOO practices at HNL 

Revised February 28, 2005 
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SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORAND.UM O F  ll'JTE.RVIEW OR ACTIVITY (�ontinuation_sh_e_e�t) ___ . 

• I �111.. I has no information or evidence of sexual harassment or hostile work environm�_ HNL. He has not been exposed to any of these issues in the HNL workplace. Overall� 
has a very positive impression of the BOO program and the BOO management at HNL 

• 11 11� I is aware that Bod »1 I has pro uced number of snowboarding videos. 
It is common knowledge among the BOO force that ·1i,•t, travels to different venues in the 
winter months to produce ther snow�rding videos. ti)•" has shown1(0"11 lthe sites 
that contain the videos on his }0n•> ·1-phone" but he never watched a complete video to 
it's conclusion. 

• � advised thatlf:Rl>• lhad asked f ho accompany his team on one ...,.--..-:-1 __, �snowboarding excursions to be a member of the production crew. It is noted that ._P· _ _. 
told ' ' 1111 that he would have to pay for his own air fare but all other costs would be covered. 

___ declined the offer and felt that it wasn't right thatljP11" I took these trips while claiming 
to be on sick leave. 

In conclusion, 111 �' hound it troubling that the BDO program has been potentially compromised by 
the KllY4 report and that SSI requirements have been violated. 

At the conclusion of the interview,� provided a signed, sworn statement. 

Attached: 
Signed, sworn statement by MBDo._l" ____ _,I dated January 23, 2012. 

1-case.Numiier: Case Title: 

� M-12-0755 BOO practices at HNL 
Revised February 28, 2005 

USE ONLY 

GO 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation. 
Security 
Ad.ministration 

, having been duly sworn, hi..-rcby make the following stal<:menl to ..... ����_,.��� .... �����· .}11 ��pr,,Vh°c· , who has been identified to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special 

agent with the Transportation Security Administration, Office offnsp1::c:tion. I am making this statement of my own free wilt 
without any :.iuress or coercion. 

"' • ;,. SEE /\TI ACHED .STATEMUN'l * "'  * 

l ha ye read this entire statement consisting of_:). ___ pages. I have been given the opportunity to make any corrections 
necessary to make the statement accurate. All of the information contained in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge and belief J undersr.and !hat I may be prosecuted for pcrjtuy or ma.king false statements if l have int.entionally 
rnisreprnsented anything contained in this statemenl I have not fntenti.onally omitted any infomlation e>r knowledge J have 
that relates IC· the matters Linder investigaf.ion or review. 

Page I of 3 
Form l\'VD-S3 (Rev. 4/!/2007) 

.20�. I pVl --, 
-· - - � e ial Agent 7,P �/ 
Trnnsportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Sec11rity 
Authority to adminisl<:r oaths: 5 I) .S . C. § 303 

�-'O Z 
1-23- z 

___ _j 
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Statement of r I " I 
January 23, 2012 at HNL FSD Office 

I J 'b , am allowing SA Joseph M. Viviano to write this 
statement tor me. 

�gnature '.7 Date 

Q
t ll 1 

LJ � have been employed with TSA since February, 2005 as a TSO at Honolulu 
International Airport (HNL). In January, 2008 I entered into the BOO Program. 

f am currently assigned to the BDO PM shift - 1 :OO pm to 11 :30 pm with RDOs 
as Thursday, Friday and Saturday. 

Sometime in November, 2011, while on-duty at HNL my BOO manager l1" • I EJ advised me and other members of my team about the recently aired KITV4 
news report. Ms. E:J told us to read the KITV4 news article which alleged racial 
profiling and other issues at HNL. 

I saw the KITV4 follow-up news report and I concluded that BDO l._'_11' _ _ _ _  _, 
was respo sib e for the information that was divulged in the report. I am 70% 
sure that 1' ti is responsible for the information provided in the report 
because I recognized his mannerisms such as his pauses in his speech, 
phrases, stuttering and syntax. 

Sometime during 2008, I had heard BDO I · lmention in assing 
that certain BDOs in Newark, NJ were called "mexican hunters". t,� 11 hen 
joked that we have BDOs at HNL who are called "mexecutioners". I dismissed 
his comment and had no knowledge of what he was referring to. 

I wish to add that Filipino fighter, Manny Pacquiao, is also known as the 
"mexecutioner" among his many local fans. 

U1 ;, l regulal makes�up nicknames for his c<>-workers and friends. I also � 
to point out that' '116 old me that KITV4 reporter Keoko Kerr is a t3ereena+L..:J 
friend of his. 

r \ff, 1 and I are frien�� we talk often about physical fitness and dietu,, n 
issues. I have also helped �work on some of his personal computer issues. 

(Din 

-z/3 
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Regarding the allegations made by the TSA whistleblowers in the KITV4 news r1 
report which aired in November, 2011- � 

• I have never witnessed and have no knowledge of racial profiling at HNL 
by the BOO program or any members of the program. I have never 
witnessed any such behavior that would target one ethnic group vs. 
another ethnic group. These allegations are not credible. 

• I have no knowledge of any HNL BOOs sleeping in a cot and J did not 
witness any TSA employees sleeping in a cot or sleeping during their 
assigned shift at HNL. I do know that a cot was placed in a storage closet 
for another BDO to use on some sort of a camping trip. • I have no knowledge of any TSA employee testing positive for cocaine. I 
first heard of this allegation .on the KITV4 news report. l have no further 
information regarding this allegation. 

• Before the KITV4 report had been aired, I have heard and seen BOO �-rnak
.
e comments about the awards and recognition that BDO r::::=J had received for discovering suspected drug currenc'{ and 

subsequent seizures.lll>'111 • lmade joking comments thatl 1' · lmust 
have a DEA connection to allow such success in discovering undeclared 
currency. • I have no knowledge or information regarding sexual harassment issues 
or potential hostile work environment. I have no knowledge of issues with 
the BDO program at HNL. Overall I have had a very positive experience 
with the BOO program and BOO management here at HNL. 

jlt>'IOI I • I am aware of the fact that BOO has produced 
sno'ttll�g videos. It is common knowledge among the HNL BOO force 
that� is the producer of these videos. He normally takes these 
snowboarding trips in the winter months. It is curious to note that the 
snowboarding trips normally coincide with his sick leave. I have no 
knowledge of any derogatory nicknames in the credits and I have never 
seen a complete video . 

• 

1 :- 1  violated. 

'tJ:• I do find it troubling that the BOO program has been potentially :ti 
c?mpromised by the KITV4 report and that SSI requirements have been "· , , 

3/3 
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U.S. Department ofHome1and Security 
Arlington, Virginia22202 · 

Transportation Security . 

Adminj strati.on 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREE1\1ENT 

The Office of Inspection (OD is conducting an official investigation. As � result, 01 
is revie"Wi.ng official records and/or have interviewed me in connection With this 
investigation. I understand that the disclosure of these recordS and/or any statementi; 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know. as defined by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520i except with the written penni.ssion of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Administration, Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unaut}J.orized release may result in disciplinary action. 

WlTNESSED BY: 
?Ad�(; _ba1t1p1N�� 

01 Official I • 

.JoI�e� If,(_ tltt11'Wo 
OJ Official 
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ATTACHMENT 
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I ,r;{i:tt'T�> .. :.11f\ \� ' �tJ 
\7.{'; � .. ./ "'-�t�:�J,�E .. . · 

Type of Activity: 
IZJ Personal Interview 
D Telephone Interview D Records Review 
0 Other 

Activity or Interview of: 

1;r>1161 I 

SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORM>\TION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Date and Time: 

January 22, 2012 

Conducted by: 
Special Agents Mark Fedorko and Edward 
Archuleta 

Behavior Detection Officer 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) Location of Interview/Activity: 

Ph: (808) 381 �1t"1" I Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
' 300 Rogers Blvd., Suite 43 
. Honolulu., HI 96819 
I 

Subject Matter/Remarks 
BDol lstated that she was hired by TSA in Seattle , WA on August 28, 2004, and 
transferred to HNL on July 27, 2008, and s�een working at HNL since that time. l"wt 1 )said 
that she became a BDO in October, 2008. �stated that she first heard of the allegation 

g profiling by HNL BDOs during late November, 2011 after a story appeared on a newscast. 
stated that she never saw the newscasts and had no idea of who the interviewees may be. 
stated that she had never observed or had knowledge of any BOO racially profiling . 

stated that she never observed any TSA employees sleeping while on duty. She further 
stated that she never saw a cot in the BOO office. 

ft' "1 lstated that she had no first-hand knowledge of any BDO getting tips from law enforcement 
officers. She did reca ll that sometime around January 201 1 ,  she was giving training at a BOO 
information sharing class. One slide on the prepared po�t presentation included a paragraph 
about a BDO's referral resulting in a large cash seizure. �stated that she never knew who the 
BDO was who made this referral .  • 

-it'"-' _stated that she had never heard of or.observed any TSA employee using drugs. ,._1DJt11_, _stated that she had never heard of any TSA employees using the term "Mexicutioner". I) -, provided a sworn statement which is attached to this Memorandum of Interview. 
---� 

Case Number: casefffie: .. - - -

BDO Practices at HNL 

fiitlfiJ;p"f i'U'!Ql'Tli Etlfi8A:.'lls'J'l0l8N1't'8R 8PFlflb<IJ U!:!lil 8Plhi 

(Revised 12·15·08) 

; 

i 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

, having been duly sworn, hereby make the following· statement to Mark E. 1...,-_,..�-------..--....... r.---F e or o, w o las een identilled to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special agent with the 
Transportation Security Administration, Office of Inspection. I am making this statement of my own free 
will, without any duress or coercion. 

SEE ATTADTATEMENT 

This statement was prepared for me by Special [:;nt \.Jark R. Fedorko at my request. 

I have read this entire statement consisting of ·z. _ pages. I have been given the opportunity to make any 
correction necessary to make: the statement accurate. All of the information contained in this statement is 
true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that I may be prosecuted for 
perjury or making false statements ifl have intentionally misrepresented anything contained in th.is 
statemenl. I have not intentionally omitted any information or know-ledge I have that relates to the 
matters under investigation or review. · 111 ' 

Fonn INVD-S3 (Rev. 4/1 /2007) 

Transportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths; 5 L'.S.C, § 303 

I 
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ny name ��:_1'_1 ___ )1 was hired by TSA at S'eattle International Airport in August 2004. In July 21, 
2008, I came to HNL. I am current a Master BOO on the p.m. shift and became a BDO in October of 

2008. 

The first time I heard about the racial profiling allegation was sometime in November of 2011 through 

co-workers. I nevef saw the news clips or read anything concerning the allegatron. 

I have never heard of TSA employees referring to themselves as, 1'Mexicutioner." 

I'm not aware of any Law Enforcement Officers approaching a BDO and giving them any Information. 

In January of 2011, I was presenting power point presentation to a class ofTSOs in H N L  and one ofthe 

slides mentioned a HNL SPOT referral had resulted fn a large sum of money being seized. 

During BDO training they teach us not to do racial profiling. I have never seen anyone doing racial 

profiling within TSA. I have never conducted racial profiling. 

If anyone asked me about how to disseminate a tip or BOLO, I'd refer them to the supervi sor or discuss 

with a supervisor the proper channels. 

I have no knowledge of any TSA employee using drugs or testing positive for drug usage. 

I heard a rumor from co-workers about a news story alleging people sleeping on a cot, but I've never 

seen a cot in the BOO work space. I've never seen anyone sleeping in the BOO work space . 

� l have no problems speaking to management. l__J 
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U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Arlingtnn, _Yirginia 22202 · 

Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (OI) is conducting an official investigation. As a result, 01 
is reviewing official records and/or have interviewed me in connection with this 
investigation. I understand that the disclosure of these recordS and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined -by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520, except with the written permission of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Administration� Washington, DC. I furilier understand that 
unauthorized release may result in .disciplinary action. 

PRINT NAME _!'" ' 
_

___ L 
WITNESSED BY� r. f � 

_l,l _M') IL_ -�{li_�_ OIO�� 

p• 

�-�� -��--OI Official _ _ _  }L_c��? 
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ATTACHM ENT 

# 40 
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Sl!NSITl'tl! Sl!CU"°ITY INfORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Type of Activity: r and Time: ···· · 
.... 

I January 24, 2012 

-�- · --·· 
� Personal Interview 
0 Telephone Interview 
0 Records Review 

1 D 
Other 

Activity or Interview of: 

J 1GJ 

Expert Behavioral Detection Officer (EBDO) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 

! 

\ Conducted by: 
Special Agents Philip Spampinato and 

I Joseph M. Viviano 

I-Location of Interview/Activity: 
____ _l 

Phone j· •)!"' l Transportation Security Administration (TSA) ;I Office 
Honolulu International Airport 

' 300 Rodgers Blvd., Suite 45 
Honolulu, HJ 96819 

Subject Matter/Remarks EBoolm1!.1........ lwas interviewed regarding allegations of racial profiling and other improprieties 
directed at the HNL BOO program and HNL officers. 

P'i 0 btarted as a Transportation Security Officer (TSO) (n October, 2002 and entered the BOO 
program in April, 2007, where she is currently assigned to the evening shift (1 :00 pm - 1 1  :30 pm) with 
RDOs as Tuesday, Friday and Saturday. 

E]advised that sometime in November, 201 1 ,  she was on-duty at HNL when one of the TSOs at 
Checkpoint 1 ,  Inter-Island Terminal told her about a TV report alleging that HNL BDOs were racially 
profiling passengers at HNL. 

EJ later found the KITV4 news report on line, read the complete report and watched the embedded 
video. After readin . � strongly believes that HNL Officers ·1 1�' •to I' •")1 I � and possibr )•(ti • are res onsible for the content of this report. 1'1'1 onfirmed that 
these individuals 111K61 were either no longer in the BDO program and/or had 
been the subject of ongoing investigations /disciplinary actions. 
Case Number; Case Title: 

M-12-0755 BDO practices at HNL 
Revised February 28, 2006 



TSA 15-00014 - 012574

Sl:NSITIVI!! SECURIT' INFORM�TION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
. ··--�----

�claimed that she is 95% positive that 1bl<6l is one of the individuals portrayed as a 
whistleblower in the KITV4 news report video_ tb)(6' has told � that Keoki Kerr, (KITV4 reporter), 
is his friend and that�should call him (Kerr) if she wanted to report any issues at HNL. 

l<ti>WI I stated that she had never heard the word�ecutioner" used by any BDOs or TSOs in 
reference to any other TSA personnel at HNL. � never heard the term "Mexecutioner" until after 
the KITV4 report was aired. Prior to the report being aired, l<t>ll6l �eardjrbl(6J ltalk about 
some BDOs in Newark, New Jersey who were called the " Mexican hunters" but nothing more was 
said about ethnic nick-names at HNL. �escribed that Filipino professional fighter, Manny 
Pacquiao, is also known as the "Mexecutioner" among his many local Hawaiian and Filipino fans. 

�confirmed that ic11J16) I l<bl{61 ihas regularly created nick-names for all of his co-workers in the 
BDO program. rtrY r the nick-names were derogatory in nature and contained sexual overtones 
and references . · )( 1 maintained that 1b1151 nick-named her 1(ti)(til land that shj ��oug�t this 
incident to the attention of BOO manager < ' <b c I and AFSD Adam Meyer. Both (ll ' and 
Meyer minimized her complaint and alluded to the fact that she should be flattered that she was given 
such a nickname. 

a � has never witnessed any evidence of racial profiling by BDOs at HNL and has no knowledge of 
any discussions regarding such activity. Soto has never witnessed any such behavior that would 
target one ethnic group vs. another ethnic group . In her opinion these allegations are not credible. 

� is well aware that BDOl(t>l<61 l has.P.!QQ.1.iced snowbo r i videos and this fact is 
known to many others within the HNL BOO force.�has seen (b 161 atchin�os on TSA 
computers while on-duty and she warned him to stop this activity. 1 K l knows that�takes 
snowboarding tr"1p�e winter months and that he has used FMLA leave and sic�hen 
taking these trips. � stated that she had alerted BDO manager � l•llX6) I that 10 was using 
sick leave and FMLA leave when taking these snowboarding trips. In response to <IH! notification, l<t1H6') I stated that l<bHtJ> I can do whatever he wants with his FMLA or sick leave. 

E::I addressed the following issues and allegations made by the TSA whistleblowers in the KITV4 
news report as follows -

• �has no knowledge of any HNL BOOs sleeping in a cot and she never saw any TSA 
employees sleeping in a cot or sleeping during their d��ioned shift at H�L. She knew that a few 
years earlier, a c�l!�psjble cot was brought in by BD \b (G) and placed in a storage 
closet for sool<tJ){ l luse on an upcoming camping trip. 

Case Number: case T'rtle: 
M-12�0755 BOO practices at HNL 
Revised February 28. 2006 

WARNING: THIS DOCUMENT C ONTAINS SENSITIVE SECUR MA C ONTROLLED UNDER 49 CFR ?ART 1520. NO 
PART OF THIS DOCUMENT MAY BE RELEASED T S WITHOUT A NEED TO KN , ED IN 49 CFR 1520, EXCEPT WITH 
THE WRITIEN PERMISSION OF THE AD OR OF THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADMIN ASHINGTON, DC . 
UNAUTHORIZED RELEASE M IN CIVIL PENALTY OR OTHER AC TION. FOR U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENC , ELEASE IS 
GOVERNED BY 5 U. 

Rosemary.Law
Text Box
(b)(6)
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SENSITl'IE SECURITY INFOftMA"flON 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

• �heard rumors in the workforce that one of the BOO managersJ"� •(it 11r'1 ) had not passed 
a random alcohol/drug test and had been placed on administrative leave fending the outcome of 
an investigation. After the KITV4 report was aired, she then learned that� IJt I had 
allegedly tested positive for cocaine use. She had no further information regarding this 
allegation. 

• �Q(lJetj me jo 4007 ,L!:}ieard a rumor circulated in the workforce that one of the BDOs, � r' ') I had a DEA connection and thru this connection was able to discover und�d , 
suspected drug currencv. on out3oing passengers. She does not know who started the rumor but it 
may have beenf "· _ I believe that TSA management investigated this issue and it 
was found that there was no improper activity by any BDO personnel. 

• c::J is currently involved in compl�ints and litigation involvin,g hostile work environment issues in 
the BOO program at HNL. Sincel' · �· l anc(tr 1'm I have left the 
BOO program, the issues contributing to a hostile work environment have been greatly mitigated. 
As far as she is concerned the workplace environment is much better and she has a very positive 
opinion of the BOO management here at HNL. 

• I believe that the BDO program has been compromised by the KITV4 report by exposing the 
number of BDOs in the program and information about the overnight shift being d one away with. 
I feel that the TSA Management Directive and SSI requirements may have been violated. 

At the conclusion of the interview,�rovided a signed, sworn statement. 

Attached: 
Signed, sworn statement by EBDO I .... ' _0_i... __ __.l dated January 24, 2012. 

Case Number: Case.Title: 
M-1 2�0755 BOO practices at HNL 
Revised Fetiiuiiiy is. 2oos 

�· 
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' I 

SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation . 
Security 
A<lmjnistration 

having been duly sworn, hereby make the following st<itement to 
L_�-.-�-.-���_J-�� � /\/L IW>JC J4J J.;i/¥1Pi�, who has been identified to me as a federal law enforc�ment officer and special 

agent with the Transportation Security Administration, Office of!nspection. 1 am making this statement of mx own free will, 

.. without any duress or coercion. 

* • • SEE A'LTACHFD STATEMENT * * " 

l have read tl1is entire statement consisting of __ . _ pages. I have been given the opportunity to make any corrections 
necessary to make the statement accurate. All of the information ht ,  · ' • t of 
my knowledge and belief. I understand that I may be prosecuted ally 

that relates to the matters under investigation or revie\ 1' 
m;-="'"' �""';"· """";""' " .. ;, , ... m,ol F'J 

Fonn INVD-S3 (Rev. 4/1/2007) 

,./ , . I 
·z11t�c:t-U , 2o,L)-

, /' 
'7jL£U� 

S cia Agent -;'Y-607 
ransportation Security Administration 

Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: S U.S C. § 303 

Page l of -:1. 
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Statement ofl ..... :_1 '_l· ___ _. 
January 24, 2012 at HNL FSD Office 

�=o=====-==-===--==:.'_t;;.. ;.;..m'allowing SA Joseph M. Viviano to write this 

I have been employed with TSA since October, 2002 as a TSO at Honolulu 
International Airport (HNL). In April, 2007, J entered into the BOO Program. 

--- 1 am currently assigned to the BOO PM shift - 1 :00 pm to 1 1  :30 pm with RDOs 
as Tuesday, Friday and Saturday. ..._ __ __, 

Sometime in November, 201 1 ,  while on-duty at HNL, one of the TSO's at 
Checkpoint 1 - Inter-Island Terminal told me about a TV report that came out 
regarding allegations that BDOs were racially profiling passengers at HNL. 

I later went back and found the KITV4 news report on line, read the complete 
report and watched the embedded video. After reading the report and watching 
the vjde9 I stronalv belie�e that t�se responsible for the content of the report 
were_11 " _ __and possibly l10'1" I These TSOs 
were either no longer in the BDO program and/or had been the subject of 
ongoing investigations/disciplinary actions. 

I wish to point out th��% positive that I 0 1" hs one of those responsible 
for the KITV4 report. L_jhas told me to call his friend, Keoki Kerr, if I wished 
to report any problems at HNL. 

I had never heard the nick-name "mexecutioer" used by any BDOs or TSOs in 
reference to any other TSA personnel at HNL. I had never heard the term 
"mexecutioner" until after the KITV4 report was aired. I did hear f.___•m_· ___ _ 
talk about some BDOs in Newark, New Jersey who were called the " mexican 
hunters" but nothing more mentioned about ethnic related nick-names at HNL. 
I wish to add that Filipino fighter, Manny Pacquiao, is also known as the 
"mexecutioner" among his many local fans. 

... ,-. ,--......... 1 '11" has regularly created nick-names for all of his co-workers in the 
BDO program. Many of the nick-names were derogatory and contained sexuc;it 
overtones and references. 

/ 

ltl){DI 

f' ; 
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I have never witnessed and have no knowledge of raci'al profiling at HNL by the..._ __ __. 
BOO program or any member(s) of the BOO program. I have never witnessed 
any such behavior that would target one ethnic group vs. another ethnic group. 
These allegations are not credible to my knowledge. 

Regarding additional allegations made by the TSA whistleblowers in the KITV4 
news report Which aired in November, 201 1 -

• I have no knowledge of any HNL BDOs sleeping in a cot and I did not 
witness any TSA employees sleeping in a cot or sleeping durin their 
assi ned shift at HNL. I do know that a cot was brought i b "11"·' 'u'"i and placed in a storage closet for another BDO ll, • ..,..., 

---
to
_..

use on 
some sort of a camping trip. This allegation is not credible. 

• I heard rumors in the workforce that one of our BOO managers, l._'1 ___ _. 
had not passed a random alcohol/drug test and had been placed on 
administrative leave pending the outcome of an investigation .  After the 
KITV4 report was aired, I then learned thatO 0 -. l had allegedly tested 
positive for cocaine use. I have no further inFoVmation regarding this 
allegation. 

• Sometime in 2007, I heard a rumor (unknown who started the rumor) that one 
of our BDOs,l1i1, 1 had a DEA connection and thru this 
connection was able to discover undeclai:ed suspected drug currency on 
outgoin assengers. I don't know who started the rumor but it may have 
been 1' I believe that TSA management investigated this issue 
and it was oun that there was no improper activity by any BOO personnel. 

• I am currently involved in complaints and litigation involriog h::tjle work. 
eo_yironment issues in the BOO program at HNL. Since _rt tt• __ ... I r ""' land 110'''6 Jhave left the BOO program . e issues 
surrounding hostile work environment have been mitigated. As far as I am 
concerned the workplace environment is much better and I have a very 
positive opinion of the BOO program and BOO management here at HNL. 

• l am aware that sool ''l I has produced snowboardin videos 
and this is known to many among HNL BOO forc.e. I have seen _111_1t_q __ 
watching the videos on TSA rompY.,trs while on-duty and I warned him to u " , 

_.,...__,, stop this activity. I know that 11' takes snowboarding trips in the winte1 
months and that he has used FMLA leave and sick leave when taking thes 
trips. 
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QjllJ 
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ATTACHMENT 
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SENSITP•'E SECURITY INFORMATION 
--·-·· -------------------------------� 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

--
Type of Activity: Date and Time: 

rgj Personal Interview 
0 Telephone Interview January 23, 2012 
0 Records Review 
D Other 

Activity or Interview of: Conducted by: 

'"'•'tit I Special Agents Mark Fedorko and Edward 
Behavior Detection Officer (BOO) Archuleta 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
Ph: (808) 398..f10 11u I Location of Interview/Activity: 

Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
300 Rogers Blvd . ,  Sui1e 45 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

Subject Matter/Remarks 

BDd ttttfi: �as interviewed regarding allegations made against HNL BDOs. BDOrdi �tated in 
substance the following information: 

' BDOI" 0 I stated that he was hi red by TSA on April 29, 2007. He became a BDO in June of 
201 1 ,  and is currently a Master BDO on the a.m. shift . 

.,. The first time he heard about the racial profiling allegation was recently when I saw two news 
stories on television. 

r During BDO training they are trained that racial profiling is absolutely not allowed. He has 
never engaged in or observed any racial profi ling. 

» He watched the news casts and recalled that the stories alleged that BDOs at HNL  were 
racially profiling, but he could not determine who were the people being interviewed because 
they obscured their faces and voices. He believes most BDOs at HNL believe that one of the 
people interviewed was BDq "' · J 

)- He has never heard of TSA employees referring to themselves as, "Mexicutioners" with the 
exception of what was said on the news. 

).>- He is not aware of any Law Enforcement Officers approaching a BOO for the purpose of 
asking them to help locate a wanted person or giving them a tip. 

Case Number: Case Title: 

M-1 2-0755 j BDO Practices at HNL 
r. .. _ --------,siE�IQS�t!i111!vi:z�"E�e�tJ!i'k�Il�l�[�4f�fQ�fd�f�bt�i�lb�HmJJ�O�rt�O�f�l'l�e�tJ!!tL�tf�1'�E�0�!4tJ�tr:==-------

� 

!Revised 12-15-08) 

' ' 

. 
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--- · ·- -
-

·---

SENSITPlE SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

r ff anyone from a la��i"enforcement agency asked him for assistance in locating an individual, he 
would refer them to his screening manager so that a tip or BOLO could be entered into the 
system. 

}> He has no knowledge of any TSA employee using drugs or testing positive for drug usage with 
the exception of what was on the news. 

'? He has heard the news story alleging that people were sleeping on a cot in the BDO office. He 
has never seen a cot in the BOO work space and has never seen anyone sleeping in the BDO 
work space. 

}- He believed management is very approachable. If I had any problems or concerns, he would 
have no hesitation in reporting my concerns to my manager. � I 1 !provided a sworn statement which is attached to this Memorandum of Interview. 

Case Number: Case Title: 

M-1 2-0755 BDO Practices at HNL 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

��J._'_· _____ __.L.___;> having been duly sworn, hereby tnakc the following statement to Mark E. 

Fedorko, who has been identified to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special agent with the 
Transportation. Security Administration, Office of Inspection. I am making this statement of my own free 
Will, v.ithout any duress or coercion. 

· 

St:E ATf ACHED ST ATEME>J1CJ 

This statement was prepared for me by Special Agent Mark E. Fedorko at my request. 

I have read this entire statement consisting of 2. pages. r have been given the opportun.ity to ma.kc any 
correction necessary lo make the staterne::it accurate. All of the information contained in this statement is 
hue and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. l understand that l may be prosecuted for 
perjury or making false statements if I have intentionally misrepresented anything contained in this 
statement. I have not intentionally omitted any information or knowledge I have that relates to the 
matters under investigation or review. 

· 

Signed and swam :o before me, this 2-3 tJ day ofJA,.1}VJ\1'-j 2012 . 

. ...-.'" ..d:/� �� 

form INYD-S3 (Rev. 4/112007) 

U I 

Mark E. edotko, Special Agent 
Transportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U.S.C. § 303 

. � 
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� 4v name isj ' ' J I 1 was hired by TSA at Honolulu rnternational Airport on April 29, 
2007. I am currently a Master BOO on the a.m. shift and became a BDO in June, 2011. 

The first t ime J heard about the racial proflling al legation was recently when I saw it on the 
news. I saw both newscasts. I recall learning in BDO training that racial profiling is absolutely 

not allowed. Since I became a BOO, I have never engaged in or observed any racial profiling. 

In the newscast that alleged that BDOs at H N L  were racially profiling, I could not tell who were 
the people being interviewed because they obscured their faces and voices. I think most BDOs 

·at HNL believe that one of the people interviewed was BDOs l'' I 
I have never heard of TSA employees referring to themselves as ''Mexicutioners" with the 

exception of what was said on the news. 

I'm not aware of any Law Enforcement Officers approaching a BDO for the purpose of asking 
them to help locate a wanted person or giving them a tip. 

If anyone from a law enforcement agency asked me for assistance in locating an individual, I 
would refer them to my screening manager so that a tip or BOLO could be entered into the 
system. 

I have no knowledge of any TSA employee using drugs or testing positive for drug usage with 
the exception of what was on the news. 

I heard the news story alleging that people were sleeping on a cot in the BDO office. I've never 

seen a cot in the BDO work space. I've never seen anyone sleeping in the BOO work space. 

I believe management is very approachable. If I had any problems or concerns, I wouid have no 
hesitation in reporting my concerns to my manager. CJ 

D 
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--·--� · - ---- - -- - -

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Arlington,,Virgfuia 22202 · 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (OI) is conducting an official investigation. As a result, OI 
is revie�fug official records and/or have interviewed me in connection with this 
investigation. 1 understand that the disclosure of these records and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520, except .with the written permission of the Administrator� 
Transportation Security Adm.inistra1.ion� Washington, DC. I further understand that 

- unauthorized release may result in disciplinary action. 

WITNESSED BY: 

�J.-� Pi/1.-li ��--
·---

0! Official 

SIGNATURE 

_}J_�l_2 
Jl·�J/J_ z_ 
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ATTACHMENT 
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S!NSITl\f! SECURITY INFORMATION 

I �1� 
i 
I 

'i_� t/ \ #' -�1 ""!d.� . . J�·· 
Type of Activity: 

[gj Personal lnter.;iew 
D Telephone Interview 
0 Records Review 
O other 

Activitv or Interview of: r ... , I 
Behavior Detection Officer 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
Ph: (808) 561 E:J 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Date and Time: 

1 January 23. 2012 
' 

: 
l Conducted by: 

Special Agents Mark Fedorko and .Edward 
Archuleta 

Location of Interview/Activity: 
Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
300 Rogers Blvd. ,  Suite 45 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

-····-·-·· ... ' .•. •...•. 

Subject Matter/Remarks 
BOO 

ir ' 
tated that he was hired by TSA in July, 2007, and has worked at HNL since that 

time. 11 1· aid that he became a BOO in November, 2009. He heard from some of the screening 
force that that the BDOs wer�ican hunters" and they sometimes referred to BDOs as "MDOs" or 
Mexican Detection Officers. �stated that he didn't feel that the screeners based this belief on 
anything and that they may have had this op inion based on a lack of understanding of the BOO 
program. 10�;-., stated that he recalled learning in BOO training that racial profiling is absolutely not �ed . 1' ,rr stated that he has never engaged in or observed any racial profiling by BDOs at HNL. L:Jstated that he had no first-hand knowledge of any BOO getting tips from law enforcement 
officers and that if a law enforcement officer ever approached him, he would refer him to his manager. 

E:Jstated that he had never heard of or observed any TSA employee using drugs with the 
exception of the news story. �further stated that after this story was aired on television, his 
co-workers assumed that the person that they referred was JQl ''110· J 
�tated that he had never heard of any TSA employees using the term "Mexicutioner." �tated that after seeing the newscast, he was not able to identify who the interviewees were, but 
based on rumor at the office, it was commonly believed that the people interviewed were BDOs r·,id land EJ B provided a sworn statement (attached). 

Case Number: ·Case Title: ············�-·-·-·-.. -· ··-------------� 

M-1 2-0755 BOO Practices at HNL 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

_._.....,.. ____ ....,..,.__. __ , having been duly swom, hereby make the following statement to Mark E. 

fedorko, who ha:; een i<lentiiit:d lo me as a federal law enforcement officer and special agent with the 
Transportation Security Administration, Office of inspection. I am making this statement of my own free 
will, without any duress or coercion. 

SEE ATTACHED ST�ENT 

This statement was prepared for me by Special Agent Mark E. Fedorko at my request. 

l have read this entire statement consisting of 2. pages. I have been given the opportunity to make any 
correction necessary to make the statement accurate. All of the information contained in this statement is 
true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that I may be prosecuted for 
perjury or making false statements ifl have intentionally misrepresented anything contained in this 
statement. I have not intentionally omitted any information or knowledge l have that relates to the 
matters under investigation or review. 

· 

Sigl)t:d and �worn to before me, thisd-'3V�ay of JJltJVM 1 2012 . 
�/ �� 
Witness 

age o 

Form !NVD-S3 (Rev. 4/1 /2007) 

II 

edorko, Special Agent 
Transportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U.S.C. § 303 
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D 
My name isP' . ' I 1 was hired by TSA at Honolulu International Airport in July. 2007. I am currently 
a Master BDO on the a.m. shift and became a BOO in November, 2009: � 
The first time I heard about the racial profiling allegation was sometime around November, 2009. 
heard from some of the screening force that that the BDOs were "Mexican hunters" and they 
sometimes referred to BDOs as "MDOs" or Mexican Detection Officers. I didn't feel that the screeners 
based this belief on anything. I believe they may have had this opinion based on a lack of understanding 
of the BDO prograrl).  I recall learning in BOO training that racial profiling is absolutely not allowed. 
Since I became a BDO, I have never engaged in or observed any racial profiling. 

I saw a newscast that alleged that BDOs at HNL were racially profiling. I could not tell who were the 
people being interviewed because they obscured their fac:es and voices. I think most BDOs <:1l HNL 
believe that the people interviewed were BooJ 1 1 bnd� 
I have never heard of TSA employees referring to themselves as, "Mexicutioners." 

I'm not aware of a 11y Law Enforcement Officers approaching a BOO 'for the purpose of asking them to 
help locate a wanted person or giving them a tip. 

If anyone from a law enforcement agency asked me for assistance in locating an individual, I would refer 
them to my screening manager so that a tip or BOLO could be entered into the system. 

I have no knowledge of any TSA employee using drugs or testing positive for drug usage with the 
exception of what was on the news. Based on hear say from work, I believe this person was BOO 
managed " !but I have no knowledge of his use of drugs. 

I heard a rumor from co-workers about a news story alleging that people were sleepir;ig on a cot in the 
BOO office. I've never seen a cot in the BOO work space. I've never seen anyone sleeping in the BDO 
work space. 

I have no problems approaching management with problems or suggestions. For the most part, they are 
very open to hearing what BDOs have to say. D 

� 
........_"'-..... . ....._____ "'"-. .............. ______ -.... ___ '-... 

...__ ...... ___ � ....... 

D ...... . ...__ 

·--·-·"·-----..... _ .. - ··t -... -........ � 

., ... , ,..._....., 
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·:. : :. 

· -- -· --- -·· - -

U.S. Deparlment ofHomeland Sccmity 
Arlingtou, .VirgiD.ia 22202 · 

Transportation 
. Security . ���,., Achninistration 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREIDd.ENT . 

The Office of Inspection (01) is ·conducting an official investigation. As a result. Ol 

is reviewillg official records aad/or have interviewed me in copnection with this 
mvestigation. I understand that the disclosure of these records and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520, except with the written permission of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Adminimation� Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unautjlorized release may result in disciplinary action. 

SIGNATURE r_,,, 
-----� I.__; . 

_ _____. 
WITNF .. SSED .BY: 

2.lf\JrW P 
OI Official 

.� I 
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ATTACHMENT 

# 43 
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SENSITl'lE SECURITY l�i;QRMATIO� 

��-���'! �afi '>,_��)��-i.'�r• 

L. -Type of Activity: 
fZl Personal Interview 
D Telephone Interview D Records Review 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

---�··- ··----Date and Time: --� 
0 Other 

Activity or Interview of: 

l(bl(6) I 
--· ····----· 

Behavior Detection Officer 
Honolulu International Airp�L) 
Phone number (808) 690-LJ 

January 23, 2012 
1 2:55 p.m. 

Cond.ucted by: 
Special Agent Akemi Wayne and 
Michael Striglers 

Location of lnterview/ActivitY: 
Transportation Security Administration (TSA), 
Honolulu International Airport 
300 Rodger Blvd 
Honolulu, HI 968 1 9  

b 6 Subject Matter/Remarks 
BDol( H 1 Was interviewed about the allegations raised by reporter Keoki Kerr of KITV News 4 
that HNL behavior detection officers (BDOs) used racial profiling for screening of passengers, slept 
on the job, used a source at the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) to target passengers, and a 
BDO supervisor failed a drug test. Vacek provided the following information: 

rH6.l lhas been a BDO at HNL since 2008. 

Rael n : 
• believed the allegations of racial profiling were incorrect. 
• All referrals made by BDOs were based on behaviors. 
• He had never heard of anyone using race as a basis for referrals. 
a l16!15l kaid he never conducted Screening Passengers by-Observation Techniques (SPOT) 

with BDOs I!! � orl{b)[l)) I 
• He was not aware of anyone in the BOO program using race as a determining factor for SPOT. 

· Case Number: 
'. M-1 2-0755 

(Revised 12-15-08) 

�ase t�··· · ·· ��O practices at HNL . . .  

_ 

. 

S"f<SI I I; e !l!t!l:Jm I 1· 11c1 ORlflB l t6l4JFQI\ QftlCJAJJ Q§tJ R;\Li 

; 

Rosemary.Law
Text Box
(b)(6)
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SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION 

.. MEtyiqRANl;:>UM O� INTE�VJEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
"Mexicutioner" 

• l(t!Xlll fsa id the first time he heard the term "Mexicutioner" was from Boo l ... <b_1(6_) _____ _ 
• The term was in reference to the fact that Flores had lots of arrests of il legal Mexican 

immi rants. 
• lb)(5> heardl""1b""')(6.,..l -----.luse the term "Mexicutioner" about a year ago in reference to 

Flores. 
• He never heard the term "Mexicutioner" in reference to l!l � 
• He had repeated the term "Mexicutioner" once or twice himself. 
• �BDOs used the term "Mexicutioner," but, he could not recall who they were. 
• � did not think that other BDOs believed � andl(bJi5i I used race as a basis for their 

referrals. 

Video on the news: 
• He was 80% certain the stature of the person in the video had the physical stature of l<bH6} 

l<b)(61 I . ----
• Two days before the first o:ws repo[j, he s oke with Lead Transportation Security Officer 

(L TSO) and former soor0�1 l b !1) stated that he had something going on that would 
help him get back into the BDO program. l ){ l aid �as the L TSO located at 
checkpoint one. There was no one else around that heard the comment. 

Sleeping on the Job: 
� • l(blt5) I said sometime in 2oos . .... l(61_16_1 _landLJ told him that BDO. ... r1_>'9_' _ .... lwas sleeping on 

a cot in the office. 
• He never heard this rumor from anyone else until the news report. 
• He had never seen anyone sleeping while at work. 

DEA Source: 
• In 2008, War and Botelho told him that BDoltbXBl lhad a source that told him two 

individuals were coming throur the airport with a large amount of cash. 
• He worked with llbX5) for fourl<bHGl I and during that time there was no ind ication was 

usin a DEA source for referr1�\ 
• tn"<m remembered that BDOf l I arranged to have a guest speaker come to the 

office and give a class on drug types and effects. 

I Case Number; 

M-12-0755 
i Case Title: 1 I BOO practices at HNL 

_ _J SEPIBI'fJlfft!: S@@tJMTI lffF6'MtIATl6!41fok ()J HCIAL USE O!<LI 

{Revised 12-15-08) 
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SE�&ITIVi SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
• The guest speaker was from Honolulu Police Department and he was an expert on the subject 

matter. 

Drug Use: 
• Before the news media release he heard a rumor of a BOO manager who was removed for 

drug use. 

Management: 
• I< , .,, lfelt there was pressure from management to look good and to look like they were doing 

a good job. 
• He did not believe there was pressure from management to make BDO referrals. 

said he was not sure who went on trips with( J -
......-

-i
did not think that BOOj" (IF jhad g

'-
o-ne-w-ith-,.,.,,m.,.,,i'ii..,,.--

--r1(on any ski trips. 

• believed that the news video contained SSI information and it should not have been 
disclosed. 

• The video explained some SPOT policy and procedures which he felt was detrimental to the 
mission. 

11• )1.b I .... __ ..,, provided a signed sworn written statement (attached). 

Case Number: Case Title: 

M-12-0755 BDO practices at HNL 

(Revised 12-15·08) 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation Security Administration 

1----• having been duly sworn, hcrchy ·make the following statement to 
..._����������� 

SA Stri�,\e(C C:M SA- W4jre , who has been identified to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special 

agent with the Transportation Security Administration, Office of fnspection. 1 am making this statement of my ov.m free will, 

without any duress or coercion. 

* *' * SEE ATTACH.ED STATEMENT * * * 

I have read this en ti re statement consisting of� pages. I have been given the opportunity to make any corrections 
necessa.iy to make the statement accurate. All of the information contained in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge and belief. I understand that I may be prosecuted for perjury or making false statements if l have intcntionaliy 
misrepresented anything contained in this statement. I hve not int tionall:.: omjttr#anv jn fonn · 

that rdatt:s to the maticrs under investigation or review. I• " ·• 

/) 

Fonn fNVD-S3 (Rev. 4/1/2007) 

�JWtf-----:------------" 
__ $22 

Q 
Page l of� 

Special Agent 
Transportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Aulhority lo administer o�lhs: 5 U.S.C. § 303 

Atrachm!n! 321-5, page 8 
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DMy name isj1 I have been a BOO since 2008. Today I was asked about the allegations of racial 
profiling and the news stories. I watched the videos and read the news article. I feel I could not believe 
the allegations. I believe that the video in question fits the stature and physical proportions ofl � I [:=:J. Two days before the first news article t spoke with! 11 '1 }who state to me that he had 
something going on that would help him get back Into the program. He was the LTSO located at 
checkpoint 1 Lanes 3 and four. There was no one else around that heard the comment. I worked with 

both I · lan dc:Jabout four trmes over the past 3 years. I believe the allegations of raclal 
profiling are Incorrect. We use observations based on behavior. I have never heard of anyone using 
race as a basis for referrals. The referrals made by BDOs here are made and based on behavior. 

I have heard the term "mexicutioner" used bvl' iei labout a _year ago The term was used as a 

reference t<>l' «"'' l 1 do not know who else was around whenf ' baid Mexicutioner. I also 
heard the term Mexican Detection Officer used three to four years ago, this was before I became a BOO. 
At the time l was an E-TSO. At the time it was in  reference to a large number of Mexicans who were 
being referred by BOOs. This was before I had been trained in SPOT. 

The first time I heard the term Mexicutioner was from( : ' I it was i n  reference to� � It referenced the fact that she has had a lot of arrests of illegal Mexican Immigrants. t have 
never heard the term Mexicutioner in use referring to !If. ' J 1 have never conducted SPOT with D 
� or jir V1 l l am not aware of anyone in the BOO program using race as a determining factor 

for SPOT. l didn't think that Raclal profiling was going on. 

I believe I have repeated the term mexicutioner once or twice but I do not remember who heard. Other 
BDOs also used the term as well I do not remember who. I thought officers did not imply that El and �use race as a basis for referral. 

In 2008 I had heard that BDOs were sleeping in a cot byf' ' '' �n� ' I They said 

thad •' lwas sleeping on a cot in the office. I have never heard this from anyone else and it was 
the only time I heard it. I have never saw anyone sleeping whi le at work. 

There was one episode of Board stories that I saw had names in the credits of the crew. I am not sure 
who has gone on trips withj lll 1 ) 1 do not think that� 1 - 1  lhas went witM�'"_' '--� 
l'flJi · Ion any skiing trips. 

I believe that there is pressure from management to look good and look like we are doing a good job. I 
believe that there is not pressure from management to make referrals. 

The first time I had heard of drug use was after my manager was removed from his position. When r 
first heard the news story about drug use I was shocked. Before the media release i had heard a rumor 
of a manager who was removed for drug use. 

In 2oosl tJ bndl1 10 ftold me a story on separate Occasions tha�"11' !had a source that 
called him to sav that two individuals were coming through the airport with a large amount of cashE'.J 
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lE:J I worked wit�1·�� !tor four C=:J and during that time I have had no indication that he was using 
a DEA source. During my time as a BDOl\O · • t.vas able to have a guest speaker come in to the 
office and give us a class on Drug types and use, as it pertained to Oahu. The Guest speaker was from 
Honolulu Police Department and he was an expert on the subject matter. 

I was shocked about the release of the video and content. I believe that the video contained SSI and it 
should not have been disclosed. The reason I believe that the video was SSI is because it contained 
policy and procedures which the disclosure of this information is detrimental to our mission. 

, 
I would be willing to take a polygrapll exam if neededLJ 
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U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Arlington, _Virginia 22202 · 

Transportation Security . 
� Administration 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (01) is conducting au of:fidal investigation As a result, 01 
is reviewing official records and/or have interviewed me in connection "With this" 
investigation. I understand that the disclosure of these records and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined by Title 
49, CFR Part 1520, except with · the written permission of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Administration, Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unauthorized release may result in disciplinary action. 

.PRINT NAME SIGNATURE fl I 

01 Official 
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ATTACHMENT 
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SE�SITlllEi &&CURIT¥ INFOfitMATION' 
---

·-
· ·-·---····· ·  ----�

· ··---- ----·· .  ---··-· . .. -----·---------, 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Type of'Activity: 
IZJ Personal lnterview 
0 Telephone Interview 
0 Records Review D Other 

Activity or Interview of; 

llG�IO I 

... ·---.. ·-·---

Master Behavior Detection Officer (MBDO) 
Honolulu International AirEJ lb)1 l 1 Phone number {808) 690 

..... · ·----

January 22, 2012 
2:40 p.m. 

Conducted by: 

·-·---

Special Agents Michael Striglers and Akemi 
Wayne 

Location of Interview/Activity: 

Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
300 Rodgers Blvd., #45 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

Sub1ect Matter/Remarks 

MBDo l Sir ti • I HNL was interviewed about the allegations raised by KITV News 4 reporter 
Keoki Kerr of KITV News 4 that Behavior Detection Officers (BOO) at Honolulu International Airport 
(HNL} used racial profiling for screening, slept on the job, used a

_ 
source at the Drug Enforctent 

Administration (DEA) to target passengers, and a r-.o surervisor failed a drug test. I" tated he 
did view the news cast but, read the news articles. ir ul) provided the following pertinent 
information: 

o ,,,_ _ __,never heard of racial profiling until the news report. 
o ever saw any indications that others were racial profiling. 

' Case 
..

. Number: -.... . . I Case Title: .. · _ . .  
; M-1 2-0755

____ __ 
BDO

_
pr�ctices at 

__ 
H�

_
L 

St;d$i I IVE SEC ORI I i i.Qi•OKIHA I IOJOFCJR OJ. I ICIAL USE 01'1 .. i 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
· ·�there were fots of referrals of Hispanics but he never heard that there was racial - �9_-·-

0 Sometime in 2010, implications were made by some BDOs about the number of Hispanic 
referrals on the a.m. shift where BDOI · t I worked. I 0 6' I could not recall who 
maqe the comi.w;�__1;,c.i..;:.u.u�ll.LjJ.L..i!ll.l.J,j..Q..,l,,Ll"-Ll.�::u.i.�'1.LLLJ..j.LL'11-�.J.LJ.L�u=,.J.J,l.ji::au.i;:1..J.1.�--

and "' 
o r.ttb�1t0..---__ n_e_v_e_r -w-o-rk_e

_.
d with

lfi
,i\i:f)>t;'fu61.-i,o"""r�c"""re"""e""'n

,,.J
1ng Passengers by Observa lion Techniques 

�
{SPO ' Transportation Security Manager ll!::) l/ll'iiJj I 

O hought he first heard the �erm "Mexicutioner" from a.m. shift BDq111101 

in June 201 1 ,  directed towardl1 •lfbl I. ,__ _____ __, 

o 1'�'51 !used the term "M�er" many times as well as the BDOs on both p.m. shifts 
and the a.m. shift in whicht___Jdid not work. 

o "Mexicutioner" was a common nick name for�l10""'"1it1_1 __,bnd man should have heard the term. 
o _,_.--���--��=-����--�����������������-lb Ho and • •· 11"'1 ere usually present duringe:liefings on Sunday 

and Wednesday w en t e erm exicutioner" was used toward ,, 
o BDOs talked about the high referral and arrests of Hispanics att e o � but no one 

said � 0�1"116 �ere targeting Hispanics. 
o !1t f,) btated that he did not work with and would not speak about the a.m. shift, as he was 

not there. They were all trained on behaviors and if they got a referral it would be based on 
behaviors. 

Use of DEA source . f5iiiil1 o rox· ately 2009 or 2010, sodl1 "111 ho1d l<t�
t
'1 khe rumor that BOO� t:::-":"�.,_�.ad an informant. 

o had not heard any other rumors until the news story. 
o thoughtj·0� .. 1 I said tha�1b'Jll) I knew someone in law enforcement that was � im information that helped him get a large seizure. 
o L___b id not recall if anyone else was present when he was told this. 

Sleeping on the lob o I it �n th� oyeroja�i sb� with Master BDol1ti11"1 I 
o BDOs �and (f)\161 orked the other side of the week on the overnight sh ift. 
o � stated he never slept or saw others sleeping on the job or at work. 
o L__J thought the overnight program ended in 2009 because management did not see a �:ed ft BOO manp er at those times. 

. .  _ 
o !':• id he�r tbat !bJ h(3d a cot in !he �ffice. I Ca$e Number: ; Case Title: 

• I M-12-075�. . ; �-�O pra�1ce� of HN
_
L ... .... . . . .. 

Sl!il>fSl'fl''ll !ll!@IJRlif / IP41�ltllfATleru81t l'ffflt.htL lJJE e.fLI 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SENSfi IVE SECURITY INFORMATIO-N 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
o jib 6 I did not hear any other allegations about sleeping on the job until the news stories. 

Drug use by BDO 
o (• H' �as not aware of anyone taking drugs nor had he heard rumors of illegal drug use 

by anyone at HNL. 
o [rr,Afi !had never heard about drug use by any BDO or BOO management until the news 

report. 

o ft tti suspected BDO 'lj' was one interviewee on the newscast and was 
99.9% certain. 

o � id not 1""t}t stating that!' '"1 lwas always disgruntled and upset. 
o �asked 1 "l11 o participate in writing an email to HNL management about the BDO 

opt out program. 11 110\ ) never wrote the email but, soon after was involved in an inquiry 
�nagernent about it. 

0 r.::...Jspeculated that the second interviewee on the news cast wasr>l'l'J pnd was 
75% certain. 

o lw Q lstated that� was disgruntled because he opted out of the BOO program and 
was unsuccessful in getting back in. 

o fn1<r, fthoughtltnit. id id a good job when he was a BDO, had come under investigation, 
as out for a year then returned for a couple of months before�out 

o �-=saJ dj-t1Y3• ldid not work the a.m. shift and did not work with t=___p r � 
o ernembered the part in the news report that covered the make-up of Incident reports 

and what was submitted in Performance Management Information System. 

Miscellaneous 
o \' 1111 \ felt comfortable going to management with issues or concerns. 
o _r bJf?• _ was willing to take a polygraph exam concerning this matter. 
o jm i1ii !felt some of the information provided to the news media was Sensitive Security 

Information. 

r=Jprovided a signed sworn written statement (attached). 

Case Number: Case Title: 

M-12-0755 BOO practices of HNL 

{Revised 12-15-08) 



TSA 15-00014 - 012603

SWORN STATEMENT 
tr 

4� . �-� Transportation �: Security �# Administration 

I, -============�--· having been duly sworn, hereby make the following statement to 

sA �r �Ws Nipl �A �� _, who has been identified to me as a federal Jaw enforcemenr officer and special 

agent with the Transportation Security Administration, Office ofTnspection. I am making this statement of my own free wilL 
wifhout any duress or coerdort. 

� � 'I' SEE ATTACHED STATEMENT + l< * 

I have read this entiro sratement consisting of _j_ pages. _I have bcc:11 given rhe opportunity to make any corrections . 

necessary to make the statement accurate. All of the information contained ln this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge and belief. [ understand that l may be prosecuted for peijury or making raise statements if r have intentionally 
misrepresented anything contained in this statement. I have not intentionally omitted any infom1ation or knowledge I have 
that relates to the matters under investigation or review. 

f ' 
Signature 

Special Agent 
Transportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U.S.C. § 303 

Page 1 of_ .'.:1_ 
Form INYD-S3 (Rev. 4/1/2007) Attachment 321"5, page 8 
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D My name is t"1"1 I 1 have been a Behavioral Detection Officer at the Honolulu 
International Airport since October 2008. I currently work as a BDO on the PM shift at 
HNL 

I never heard of racial profiling until the news report about Honolulu airport in November 
201 1 .  Sometime in 2010, there were discussion between the BDO's about the number 
of referrals of Mexicans and Latinos on the AM shift wherel' I was on. 
Some BDO's thought that there was a pattern, but believed her referrals were based on 
behaviors in the SPOT program. 

There was never any discussion that she was profiling Mexicans or Jatinos. All SDO's 
were all trained on basing their referrals on be aviors that we observe on passengers. 
SomA of the ROO'i; th�t mad?, comments about lt•ilti• hi h number of referrals of 

b ltl 

ho worked on the same am 
shift but different days. 

I first heard term "mexicutioner" on the AM shift in June 201 1 which was directed 
towards � BDO's would say " the mexicutioner had referrals today" because of her 
high referrals and arrests of Mexicans. I said it before because it became a common 
nickname for her. BOO 11 I was the first person who he heard say the 
term "mexicutioner" butl "l' I use the term many times. Soon after BDO's on the AM 
and PM shift were using the term "mexicutioner'' as a nickname f in 1 Many of the 
BDO's in the program should have heard the term. I never hear ' · 4t' or� use 
the term mexicutioner. 

The BDO's also talked about the high number of referrals and arrests thatl" · n , I had 
of Mexican and latinos. However, no one ever said or thought that EJ was targeting er 
profiling Mexicans or latinos. The BDO's on the PM shift talked about the r'\M shift 
referrals and arrests and would ask if they were Mexicans. I never worked withf._1 _' ___. 
norl( ' I 

"'61 ....._ _____ � ___ ____,were usually present when t e term "mexicutioner" were !) {l\ made abou during team briefings on Sundays and Wednesday. I never hes•d 
anyone say "how many Mexicans we got today" 

None of the BDO's at HNL ever admitted going to the news media about the profiling 
allegations. I believe that 110 1 1 1 °11° I provided that information to the news medra LJ 
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Fbecaus� I could see him doing something Hke that based upon past experience. I don't L-frustl'b'tt:i land he was always disgruntled and upset about things. 
FQr instance!' 6 ! asked me to participate in writing an email to HNL management 
once about the BOO opt out program and I agreed. I never wrote the email, but soon 
after I was involved in a inquiry with management about it. I only know l1t'"' • I on a 
professional level and don't associate with him on my personal time. 

I bP.lieve that the BDO's that who participate�· ......., ......... 'i'"ws video were c='='· =�=r==:=:=� 
anctl1l ' J I am about 99% sure it was 

ti 1 '- ' 
nd about 75% sure it was_' __ 

Both were very disgruntled about the program (h ' pted out of the program and then 
later reapplied twice and was denied. 

I think that some of the information provided to the news media concerning BOO 
program was SSI. For instance, the process of the incident reports and the entry into 
the PMIS and how the incident reports were reviewed by management. 

I first heard about the cot and BDOI ' !sometime in 2009. I never hea.rcl anything 
about anyone sleeping on the cot. It was not until the news report came cut in 
NovemhAr 201 1  that I heard about some sleeping on a cot. I worked on the overnight 
shift with � before it was cancelled and he never saw anyone sleeping on the job or a 
cot. rhe ov.cmight shift endoo in 2009 because management did not see the need for 
BOO presence at that time of night because most flights ended by midnight. 

The first I heard about a BOO using an informant as source was between 2009 and 
20·1 o. l l ' hold me he heard thatl '11 1 I knew someone in a iaw 
enforcement agency who gave him information that help him get a large seizure and 
award. I did not hear anything else about that until the news report mentioned it. 

I never heard anything about drug use by any BDO's or BOO management until the 
news report. 

I feel comfortable goin to management if he saw racial profiling or any other problem 
in the BOO program. ' 
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U.S. Department ofHomelm<l Secwity 
Arlington, Virginia 22202 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (OI) is conducting an official investigation. As a result, OI 
is reviewing official records and/or have interviewed me in connection with this 
investigation . I understand that the disclosure of these record.S and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520, except with the written permission of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Administratio� Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unauthorized release may result in disciplinary action. 

PRINT NAME SIGNATURE 

I �. 
WITNESSED DY: 

A�t:· lV\ :  
OI Official 
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ATTACHMENT 

# 45 
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SENSITPt'E SECURITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

1-=--------------------r------,"=':"'"----· .. ---- ______ __, Type of Activity: Date and Time: 
� Persona l Interview D Telephone Interview 
D Records Review 
D Other 

Ar.tivity or Interview .of: 

lll'll'll I 
, Expert Behavior Detection Officer (EBDO) 
i Honolulu l�nal Airport 
(808) 216-t....:___j 

January 21 , 2012 
1 2:55 p.m. 

Condur.teci by· 
Special Agents Michael Striglers and Akemi 
Wayne 

Location of Interview/Activity: 
Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
300 Rodgers Blvd. , #45 
Honolulu, H I  96819 

Subject Matter/Remarks 

EBDdtil\rl> J HNL was interviewed about the allegations raised by KITV News 4 reporter 
Keoki Kerr HNL BDOs used racial profiling for screening, slept on the job, used a source at the Drug 
Enforcement Administration (DEA) to target passengers, and a BOO supervisor failed a test. e�ar htated that he viewed the news cast, read the articles and analyzed the content. .____ 

_ 
____. 

provided the following information: l'r 61 became a 800 on April 15, 2007.j'tmii rorked the evening shift but, did work the day 
shift for approximately one year. ,___ __ _. 

o;:;:::;:;::==<=.f. irst heard the allegation of racial profiling :t HNL when tbi news report aire-..-d_._-.. o as 90% certain that he recognized BDOl'E1 1r11 L _and former BDd .... '_0_' _ _, 1�:t!} m viewing the newscast anf!adj�g the transcript. . � 1 
o 1 IJ believed it waslwlio· knd 11 1�;1 ho made the allegations.,...based on l' " ,, I 

analyses of the cadence. wording. phrasing, and speech patterns. f 1"1 !explained that 
he recognized the stutter inlt1.,Hb. tbpeech. 

Case Number: Case Title: 

M-12-0755 : BOO practices at HNL 
i 

SENSlllVE SECCRti t INFORJIAllQNJFUR UFFJtt<L USE 014L I 

(Revised 12·15·08) 
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SENSI I IVE SECUFtlTV INfiOftMJfcTION 

o """"-
_ _..explained that one individual articulated well a 1'j' ''' does. 

o had not suspected, saw or heard of racial profiling by anyone at HNL or in the HNL ..................... �gram. 
o F°':,Istated thatl' 110' !would come into the BOO office and announce "how many 

Mexicans did we get today?" 
o �used the term "Mexicutioner" approximately once a month. 
o t::__Jhad nicknames for everyone but, did not specify for who the nickname was 

associated. 
o 1ti11n worked with 1"1(u • from approximately August 201 O to June 2011. 
o worked with 1111 •i years ago. 
0 did not hea IJJll l sw1,�nvthjng abo�t racial profiling or ''Mexicutioners." 
o was not sure if BOO[' " present when the term "Mexicutioner" was 

0 
0 

�---1stated that no one in the BOO pro_qram ever targeted based on race. 
___ did not recall working with BDOf �'' ' I and had not heard rumors that she 

ling or targeting His�nics. 
o worked with EBDO t'.:J �in 2007 for a few months. 
o ad not suspected, saw, or heard that�targeted Hispanics, or any other 

�roup. 
o r::__jguessed that the reason for the high number of illegal arrests of Hispanics was 

partly due to the high numbers of Hispanics in Hawaii. There were two news articles in 
2011 about farms in Hawaii that were "busted" for illegal workers and human trafficking. 

o l1 ll !stated that the HNL BDO program has always been based on behaviors. 

Sleeping on the Job 
· f(bi16!l 1 · "'1I I o Appr�x1ma.tely July 2007, L___Jbrought a cot to work for ., to borrow for a 

camping trip. 
o The cot remained folded in  a closet for a few days then Spot Transportation Security 

Mana erl<[l '' lsent an email asking that it be removed and for an explanation. 
o as Tt §lW§rj of anyone sleeping on the cot MNL. 
o eard it < i continue to spread rumors thatt:.hL.Jwas caught sleeping on the cot 

qnd management was doing nothing. 
o I• �' �ontinued to repeat the story even after being told repeatedly byf1r•t61 ! the 

explanation. 

Case Number: Case Title: 

M-1 2-0755 BOO practices at HNL 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SE�SITl"E SECIJRIIY INFORMATION 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

o P· !stated that the overnight shift was eliminated because there was minimum traffic of 
passengers and it had nothing to do with the cot or sleeping. 

Drug use gv BDQ 
o j0 d �new that BDO �l·ti·1n1 I was reassigned from the BOO program approximately 

July 201 1 .  
a When the news story ai redf 1 '- )concluded that the a llegation was referring to l .... n_11u_1 ___. 

because of his reassignment. 
o I 0•1u1 had not seen, heard or suspected that any BOO used drugs. 

Miscellan�• is 
o E" ' ltelt that Sensitive Security Information about the BOO program was revealed in the 

news re ort (procedures, staffing and walk the line). ·11• i ·i\ tated that there was no quota or required number of referrals. 
,__ _ __,.elt comfortable going to management with any problems or concerns. 

as willing to take a polygraph exam concerning this matter. 

r'pf·- I provided a signed sworn written statement (attached). 

Case Number: Case Tit!e: 
M-12-0755 BOO practices at HNL 

(Revised 12·15-08) 
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SWORN STATEMENT B �;;;;� Tr  . f'�� ·. ansportat1on (� · . ,. Security �<!!! 1�� Administration ..... , ,w� 

r j' •11:1, I 
., ... ----------------�ving been duly sworn, hereby make the following statement to 

((11CW.e-� W'1ler'- �(_ Al£e/YI; ·� , who has been identified to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special 

agent with the.Trai:isportation Security Administration, Office oflnspection. I am making this statement of my. own free will, 

without any dJress or coercion, 

"' "' * SEE ATTACHED STATE!\ffiNT * * * 

I have read this entire statement consisting of _3_ pages, l have been given the opportunity to make any corrections 
necessary to make the statement accurate. All of the information contained in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge aud belief. I understand that I may be prosecuted for perjury or making false statements if 1 have intentionally 
misrepresented anything contained in this state:nent. I have not in ntio I o ·tt d i fonn tio o kno led c have 
that relates to :he matters under investigation or review. 11 

....,. 
Page l of� 

Form fNVD-S3 (Rev. 4/1/2007) 

_, 20� . 

ftf_ rfl 
Special Agent�----· - -- ---.. 
Transportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U.S.C. § 303 

Attachment 321 ·5; page 8 
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[J y name is l1tili5i I 1 am an Expert Behavior Detection Officer at Honolulu 
International Airport and have been since the inception of the program in April of 2007 

The following is an account of my interview with 001 

I first heard of the Accusations of Racial Profiling at HNL when the News report aired on 
KITV 4. I recognized l�bK6) landl6l16l ltrom viewin the video and 
reading the transcript of the news cast and believed it was (IJ 5J andP1J !Bl I based on 
my analysis of the cadence, wording, hrasin and speech patterns, and stuttering. 
I am familiar with that same stutter in tti 6> speech. 
I also could hear that one individual was articulating well asl(0X0> l does. 

I worked.with f0l\6J ltrom August 2010 to June 201 1 (approximate) I didn't hear the 
term Racial Profiling from other BDOs but woutd hear comments fromfblM I like "So 
how many Mexicans did we get today?"No one else made similar comments, they only 
laughed as they would at a joke. 

I heard l!bJ(til I use the term "Mexicutioners" after about one month after starting work 
with him in August 2010. He had nicknames for everyone and this was just another 
nickname. He never specified who he was aiming the nickname at He would randomly 
throw out the term about once or twice a month. I don't reca11 l1t>lt6' lever saying that 
he was targeting Mexicans or Hispanics. 

I worked with Office�(bJta) �hen he first started with the program but then he later 
opted out of the program. Officer[::]s now L TSO at Checkpoint 1 in the Inter Island 
Terminal. I don't recall ever hearing Waro say anything about Racial Profiling or 
Mexicutioners. 
I do not believe anyone in the BOO program at HNL targeted Mexicans or Hispanics. 

fmr-1 I don't recall working with L__Jand don't know anything about if she was profiling or 
targeting Mexicans. I worked with !!§] back in 2007 for a few months and did not see him 
racial profiling or targeting Mexicans, Hispanics or other ethnic groups. I attributed the 
high referral rate at HNL was related to the two articles and court cases that came out 
last year about the fanns that got busted for illegal Mexican and Asians workers and 
human trafficking. 

We do not operate on a quota as far as referrals. The SPOT referrals of the HNL BOO 
program have always been based on behaviors. � 

Rosemary.Law
Text Box
(b)(6)
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1 1'•1 ) 
I have heard the accusations of someone sleeping on the job and they are

_
al_l -� 

convoluted and untrue. It was my cot. t believe it was in July of 2007 that ._f _"'·-� 
wanted to take his ailing father camping and he knew it would be difficult transferring his 
dad from the wheelchair to a sleeping bag on the ground. I told OfficerEE]that I had a 
cot that he could borrow. I brought in the cot to loan to OfficerE!:land, because we were 
on opposite shifts, left it in the office for hi'¥o 1_2ick up.lThe cot was there for a few days 
and was spotted by someone who alerted C' _of its presence. 

l 111 bent out a broadcast email asking for the cot to be explained and removed 
immediately. I emailed 1�· :"3. land explained the reason for the cot bEn� in Te office. 
As far as I know no one slept on the cot in the BOO program. I he�rd ·-1 spreading 
rumors aboutbJ getting caught sleeping on the cot and that management was doing 
nothing about it. That never happened. 

I don't know of any allegations of anybody using DEA as a source to target drug runners 
or passengers. I first heard of it in the news story. 

I first heard about someone testing positive for drugs and not getting fired in the news 
report. In January 2012, I overheard 01 ' l tell several BOOs after he returned to 
duty that he had a false positive drug test and that is why he was reassigned in the 
program. I did know about the allegation in the news article and concluded it was 
referring to EJ because of his reassignment. 

I believe SSI about the BOO program was revealed in the news rep.art because it talked 
about our procedures, staffing and walking the line. 

I heard in the news report that BDOs were sleeping on the overnight shift and that is 
why it was eliminated. I understand the overnight shift was eliminated because of 
minimum passenger traffic and it had nothing to do with the cot. The cot issue and the 
overnight shift incidences were not even at the same time. 

I feel very comfortable about going to management regarding any problems or  racial 
profiling concerns. 

I am willing to take a polygraph exam if needed . 
.___� 
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ATTACHMENT 

# 46 
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SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION 

/�'..,, MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW /�-�i 
\� ''Ej OR ACTIVITY \. � � .. / t..,�'.'i.\'I) �t .. .. �· 

. . .. �,.._. _,, ... . ... --
Type of Activity: Date a-nd Time: 

- -

� Personal Interview 0 Telephone Interview January 22, 2012 
D Records Review 0 Other 

Activity or Interview of: Conducted by: 

Special Agents Mark Fedorko and Edward I" I I Archuleta 
Behavior Detection Officer (BDO) 
Honolulu lntemational Airport (HNL) Location of Interview/Activity: 

Ph: (808) 620-EJ . Transportation Security Admin istration (TSA) 
;. 300 Rogers Blvd., Suite 43 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

Subject Matter/Remarks 

BDol� '11 • I l•b1 ' - Uwas interviewed by 001 agents. BDO�stat�he was hired by the 
TSA on February 1 ,  2004, and has been working at HNL sinc�anfme. �additionally stated 
that she became a BDO in July, 2008. V i{i'i' I stated that she first heard of the allegation regarding 
profilin by HNL BDOs during late November, 201 1 ,  when she saw the story on the newscast. 
1' 1 believed that the TSA personnel who were giving the media these stories were I 0- I It• 1i I and lt>11si She based these suspicions on the fact that they were both disgruntled 
employees an ave oth been absent from work for a long time. 

I· " - I stated that she had never observed or had knowledge of any BDO racially profiling. 

I ' I stated that she never observed any TSA employees sleeping while on duty. She further 
stated that although she never saw a cot in the BOO office, she was told b '�6 hat he had 
brought a cot in for the purpose of loaning it to another TSA employee. could not recall who 
the other employee was. 

I " 11 • I stated that she had no first-hand knowledge of any BDO getting tips from law enforcement 
offlcers. She did recall hearing a rumor sometime around July, 2008, in which it was alleged that 

�umber: �-0755 . ] �oe3it�'.�actices at �NL 
---S-.1!:-NSITIVF. SECijiun INFORM-A'-Tl-0-Nl_F_OR OFFICIAL l'jsE ONLY 

WARNING: THIS RECORD CONTAINS SE�SITIVE SECURlTY INFOR�IATION THAT IS CONTROLLED llNOER 49 CFB PART 
1520. NO PART OF THIS RECORD l\'lA Y BE DISCLOSED TO PERSONS WITHOUT A "NEED TO KNOW", AS DEFINED IN 49 CFR 
PARTS 1 5  AND 1520, l!:XCEPT WITH THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ADMTNISTRA TOR OF THE TRANSPORTATION 
SECURITY ADMINISTRATION OR Tm: SECRETARY Of<' TRA:'iSPORTATION. lJNAllTHORlZEO RELEASE MAY RES-C:LT N 
ClVJL PENALTY OR OTHER ACTION. FOR t:.S. GOVF.RNMENT AGF.NCIES, PUBLIC DISCLOSUR�; IS GOVERNIW BY 5 U.S.C. 
552 AND 49 CFR PARTS 15 AND 1520. 

(Revised 12·15·08) 
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&liN&ITl¥1i 81i'1l!IAITY INFORMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

BDOI � I> !referred a passenger Who was found to" 
have a large sum of money in his possession 

and that he was able to make this referral because he was tipped off by a law enforcement officer. 
lib ;;, I did not believe this rumor to be true. 

l101l11 I stated that she had never heard of or observed any TSA employee using drugs with the 
exception of [!!J) (a Jiu� I She further stated that she heard a conversation between two co-workers 
alleging that l11'1m I was caught using cocaine. t· · · 111 I stated that she had no first-hand knowledge 
of this. 

11.1> · I stated that she had never heard of any TSA employees using the term "Mexicutioner." She 
first heard of this term on one of the newscasts about TSA. 

!!OJ I provided a sworn statement which is attached to this Memorandum of Interview. 

Case Number: Case Title: 

M-1 2-0755 . BOO Practices at HNL 
3£143! g1; E szcoru It LNFURNl$11QNltUR OFFJttAL USE ONLY 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

,.. _________ _.., havlng been duly sworn, hereby make the following statement to Mark E. 

·edorko, who has been identified to me as a fi::dcral law enforcement officer and special agent with the 
Transportation Security Administration, Office ofTnspection. T am making this statement of my own free 
will, without any duress or coercion. 

SEE A TT ACHED STATEMENT D 

This statement was pre-pared for me by Special Agent Mark E. Fedorko at my request. 

I have read this entire statement consisting of 2-pages. I have been given the oppornmity to make any 
correction necessary to make the statement accurate. All of the infonnation contained in this statement is 
true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. I lUlderstand that I may be prosecuted for 
perjury or making false statements if l have intentionally misrepresented anything contained in this 
statement T have not intentionally omitted any infonnation or knowledge T have that relates to the 
matters under bvcstigation or review. 

· 

µI) \ 
Signed and sworn to before me, this!!..__ day of 'J kAJb'4�(2o L2. 

���··-
Witness 

--- ... ----··----

Form TNVD-S::l (Rev. 4/1/2007) 

age o _ 

I I 

Mark E- Fedorko, Special Agent 
Transportation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U.S.C. § 303 
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r:lname is Ir> ,<J, I C!!E:] I was hired by TSA at HNL in February of 2004. I am currently a Master 
BOO on the a.m. shift and became a BDO in July 6, 2008. 

The first time I heard about the racial profiling allegation was while watching the story on the news. 

watched both the November of 2011 and the December 2011 story. 

We (co-workers) have speculated the people who made the allegation was 11 •" 1 I e land l11 '1 fl � We based this sp,eculation on the fact that f1 '6 l has not been working due to being under 
investigation and tha�had been under investigation. I also heard j<fl, 6 Fas associated 

with the rumor. 

The policy in TSA is that racial profiling is not allowed. I've never seen anyone do racial profiling and 
have never done racial profi ling. 

On the news cast they report t a TSA employee was getting information from a DEA employee. In (!,I) 
July of 2008, " '"' had made a referral that ended up in the discovery of a 
large sum of cash. I heard that a person in Law Enforcement called f .ti. 113 I and told him to look for a 
person that may be carrying money, but I have no knowledge of this being true. 

I saw the news story that alleged TSA employees were sleeping on a cot, but I've never seen a cot in the 
BDO work space. I've never seen anyone sleeping in the BDO work space. BDOj1"1t"li1 I told me he 
brought a cot to work in order to loan it to a fellow co-worker. 

I have never heard of TSA employees referring to themselves as, "Mexicutioner." The first time I heard 
the term was during the news cast. People have told me that the boxer Manny Pacquiao is referred to 
as the Mexicutioner. 

I have no knowledge of any TSA employee using drugs or testing positive for drug usage. I believe the 
news report was referring to my manager!' hG l1 . o! I In October of 2011, I was on the airport 
shuttle and another TSO mentioned to a bunch ofTSA employees that l!J�had gotten caught 
using cocaine and was under investigation .D 
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U.S. Department oflloroeland Secwity 
Arlington, _Virginia 22202 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (OI) is conducting an official investigation. AB a result, OI 
is reviewing official records and/or have interviewed me in connection with this· 
investigation. I understand that the disclosure of these records and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defio.ed by Title 
49, CFR, Part 1520, excepi with the written permission. of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Administra:tioni Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unauthorized release may result in disciplinary action. 

PRINT NAME 
"'" 

WITNESSED BY: 

J_t\L_ ff i)C _R_(Q_ __ _ _  -·· 

or Official 

Ol Official 

SIGNATURE 

f / z,z.; ( l. 
l .I 
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ATTACHMENT 

# 47 
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8£N81TP/E SECURITY INFORMATION 
_____ ,, __ H O  > -------OM H •  --------, 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Type of Activity: -

----
··--

------�bate a·na·r_i_m_e_: --- --··• ·· 

iZ] Personal !nterview 
D Telephone Interview D Records Review 
D other 

Activity or Interview ::>f: 

rJ/\b· I 

January 22, 2012 
1 0:40 a.m. 

Conducted by: 
Special Agents Michael Striglers and Akemi 
Wayne 

Lead Transportation Security Officer (L TSO) 
Honolulu International AirQart 
Phone number (808} 389LJ 

Location of Interview/Activity 

-----
-�---· " 

Transportation Security Administration (TSA) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
300 Rodgers Blvd . ,  #45 
Honolulu, HI 968 1 9  

-

-

-

--�---

---------------' 
Subiect Matter/Remarks 

L TSOjlbYa) !was interviewed about the allegations raised by KITV News 4 reporter Keoki 
Kerr that behavior detection officers (BDOs) at HNL used racial profiling for screening, slept an the 
job. used a source at the Druf Enforcement Administration (DEA) to target passengers. and a BOO 
supervisor failed a drug test. �b�s. :Provided the following pertinent information: r 11' 1 !became a BOO in approximately July 2008 and had primarily worked in the a.m. shift 

Racial Pr�lipa 
o !6 I stated that approximately 2.5 years prior he had heard Transportation Security 

Officers (TSO) make comments about how BDO's picked on illegal immigrants or 

o ......,., ___ ..,. 
0 ,,,_ ___ """' 
0 .__ _ _,,,.�-rn the job training period and stated she 

after. 

- - · l�e Title: ···· -

· --�?- pr_actices at H�L .... _____ _ $£14511t¥E3!t'.Uft1Ti !!CP8tt'flfit'fUmW8ft 8FF1tllals 1'!!315 8Pil<li 

{Revised 12-15-08) 
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SENSllrt'E SEGURITY INFORMATION 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

o <tt1 '' stated that during after action briefings <ti 8> and 
alked about howl10" • I could possibly be targeting illegals due to her numbers. 

o did not mention this to management because the program is subjective and he 
had no evidence. 

o I 1"' � id not hear the term "Mexicutioner" until the news� 
o lhought former BOQjlt11'1 !commented that[_,::_pargeted illegals. 

Use of D�..source 
0 f:< T : lheard others joking that soo .... l1b�•

·

�\-____ _..I received inside information 

Slee 

from a DEA source,,,,.....,._.._ 
o 11L' i I though..._1t1_01......,....�.LJ.LL..,,.nted thatl•011n I had an inside source from the DEA. 
o worked with > u , a couple of times and it did not appear he was targeting 

based on inside information . 
did not see any BOO sleep on-the-job . 

.__ __ __,did not hear the allegations until the news story aired. 

Drug use by BOO 
o l(b "5' !had not heard allegations that anyone in the BDO program used drugs until the 

news story. 
o I '61 )felt it was a privacy issue to disclose the drug issue . 

Misceltan 

._ __ _. thought the interviewees on the newscast were I lbecause he 
......,. ................... ......,... n them lately. · 

�;:=:=-====;explained thatl'tl1 ' lwas also vocal . 
.__ __ --Jsaid he was 20% sure it wasl"'�ih l '""I n""'Hil"""i __ _,I did mention! Ntii I because 
she was pu lled from performing BOO duties, but agreed that was illogical. 

0 h�6 elt comfortable that he could go to management with problems or concerns. 
o .... 1 1'_11 ___ ..... id fee! some pressure to make referrals because his team had zero statistics 

and at one time a BOO was put on his team to observe them. 
o J°)1tt> �id not recall if any information in the news reports was Sensitive Security 

Information . 
Yamamoto ned sworn written statement attached). 
Case Number: Case Title: 
M-1 2-0755 BOO practices of HNL 

(Revised 12-15-08) 
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SWORN STATEMENT 
TransI?ortation Security Admin1stration 

J _____ , having been duly sworn, hereby make the following starement· to 

IY\\C�.e.\' Str15!err t.Iiv\. >J<em; �r· who has be t-"!1 identified to me as a federal law enforcement officer and special 

agent with the Transportation Security Administration, Office of Inspection. I am making this statement of my o.wn free.will, 

without any duress or coercion. 

* * " SEE ATIACHED STATH1EN'f * * * 

I .have read thls entire statement consisting of_l_ pages. 1 have been given t)te opportunity to make any corrections 
necessary to make the statement accurate. All of the infonnation contained in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge and belief. I understand that I Day be prosecuted forperjury or making false statements ifI have intentionally 
misrepresented anything containt:d in this statcmenl. I have not intentionally omilted any infonnation or knowledge I hav� 
that relates to the matters under invesiigation or review. 

Witness 

Page l of� 
Form INVD-S:l (Rev. 4/1/2007) 

r· 
Special Agent · 

Tran�'Portation Security Administration 
Department of Homeland Security 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U.S.C. § 303 

Attachment 321-5, page 8 
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tJ My'name isl Ir am currently an LTSO at Honolulu International Airport. From 

the time period of>rovember 2008 tifl June 20 1 0  I was a Master Behavior Detection Officer with 

the BDO program at Honolulu. 

The first time I heard about racial profiling was when I was working on the AM shift. As f 
worketl in different areas of the airport buL more specifically at the Inter Island T enninal side of 
the airport l would hear TSO's once every couple of months make comments about how BDO's 

are picking on illegal imm igrants or sometimes Mexicans. This occuned approximately two and 

a halt' y<.:ars ago when I was still in the program. 

During my time in the BDO program at Honolulu I do not recall seeinQ anyone use racial 

profiling as a means to get a referral . I was at times suspicious o fE:Jber.;ause she had high 

statistics. I did not \Nork with!' 1 11 lthat often but did work with her when I first started out 
during my OJT period. During this time I thought she was doing a good job. 

During s�er actillp/briefings it was talked about between me,I o, i .: l an<lE:::) OthaL tcould possibly be targeting illegals due to her high stuts. I did not 

mention any of this to management because the BDO program is very subjective when it comes 

to how people perceive hehaviors. 

Until the news story broke out I did not hear the term ''Ylexicutioner" 

In regards Lo the accusations of gelllng inside infomiation from a DEA source, I heard that 

maybe 1 ,,, was the one who was getting the inside information. People did joke 
around that 0 was the one who was g�tting the in1i.nn1ation but I cannot recall who those 

people were. The DEA plaque that was awarded toE:!Jl.bc!ieve it was in the office before f 
cami;: into the BDO program in 2008. 1 did work withL.Ja couple times but during those times 

it did not appear to me that he had inside information nor was he targeting based on a inside 

source. Although we did have discussions about differences in opinion in regards to behaviors. 

I .- I � . Ji1ii\6'l I vaguely t·cmcmber making comments that L_J targcts illegal 's and that thel_J 
had an inside source from the DEA. 

When l first saw the video of the people being interviewed on television I thought it wasE:] 
11 I and� r:J' tended to be very vocal at times and I had not seen both of them in a 

while either. I am about maybe 20% sure that it was Bothelo. 

In regards to the news accusations ofBDO's sleeping on the job, I had not heard anything about 

that until the news broke out. l can recall that at one time there was an overnight shift that was 

eliminated. I did not sec any BDO's sleeping while on the job. E:J 

'1.. o� 1 
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Dln regards to the drug use hy an individu�l in the program, the news repoti was the first time [ 
had heard about that. As TSA employees we are tested randornly for drngs and alcohol. 

In regards to any issues that would really concern me I would have felt comfortable going to 

management with any problems. I at times did feel a little pressure when my team had 0 
statistics and the other team had a lot. At one time there wa:s even an individual from anulher 

team put on my team to see if there was an issue with the way my team was operating. 

Jn rnga,ds lo the news rep0rt I cannot mnember any SSL I r1owever feel that the>� was a 

privacy is5uc in regards Lo lhe disclosure of the drug issue. 1 ' " 
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U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Arlington, Virginia 22202 · 

Transportation 
Security . 

Administration 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Office of Inspection (Ol) is conducting an official investigation. As a result, 01 
is reviewing official records and/or have interviewed me in connection with this 
investigation. I understand that the disclosure of these records and/or any statements 
I make may not be disclosed to persons without a need to know as defined by Title 
49, CPR, Part 1520, except .w ith the written permission of the Administrator, 
Transportation Security Administration, Washington, DC. I further understand that 
unauthorized release may result in disciplinary action. 

PRil\'1' NAME SIGNATURE DATE 

I"'' bl/2.Z/ )l_ 

WITNESSED BY: ; ' %2 �(Yl� h)t"� 1/z.&/rz.. � , OI Official 

�{= &�;;� IS!/1�/r-;/ /ff-,;-.d;..__ OI Official L/ . ) 7 
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ATTACHMENT 

# 48 
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SF�Sllll/F SECURITY l�FORMAIIO� 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

Type of Activity: 
·----.-

D
-

a
-
te and Time: 

-·---- .. _____ _ _ 

r8J Personal Interview D Telephone Interview 

D Records Review D Other 

Activity or Interview of: 

�IJ IJ I 
Behavioral Detection Officer (BOO) 
Honolulu 1nternC[irport (HNL) !D1(hl 

Phone 808-673-

.... --. ··--� ---.. 

January 22, 2012 

Conducted by: 

Special Agents Philip Spampinato and 
Joseph M. Viviano 

.... --� . 

Location of Interview/Activity: 

Transportation Security Administration Office 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) 
300 Rodgers Blvd. Suite 45 
Honolulu, HI 96819 

.. ·---... ---- ____ .. 

Subiect Matter/Remarks 

001 interviewed Behavioral Detection Officer (BOO)l l) · ·• 1 lregarding allegations of 
racial profiling and other improprieties directed at the 800 program and the BDOs at HNL. lml(61 I started as a Transpo io rity Officer (TSO) in December, 2007 and e�te.red the 

J 

BOO progrrm in Aua� , 201 1 .  Qt\Oj is current! assigrwd to tbe PM srft at HNL. !' 16 I 
does know _ 't"' _J ., ,, 

, ib>1•1 andl' •lluJ but has no established 
relationships with them other than work con ac . 

lP 1t)1 lis familiar with the KITV4 news report claiming racial profiling and other issues at the BOO 
program at HNL. One otl t.• I friends called him to tell him thatthey had seen the KITV4 report 
on TV. 

___ _.lalso addressed the additional allegations mentioned in the KITV4 report as follows -

I Case Number: 

M-1 2-0755 I Case T itle: 
BOO practices at HNL 

Revised February 28, 2006 SENSh 102 SECOR\ I Y INPQRNIA llON)POPE 0§11 ICIAE JS! OIJEI 

OR OTHER ACTION. 
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SENSI I IVE'. SECUFtlTV INFORMATION 
MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 

• I'· 10 l does not know the identities of the two individuals who were portrayed as the 
whistleblowers appearing. in the KITV4 news report in November, 201 1 .  

• 11 ·ltul Jcfaimed that about 2 years ago he heard some fellow TSOs mention the term 
"mexecutioner" in passing in reference to a TSA emp!oyee. 11·11 0 )just dismissed it as idle 
go�sip with no further consideration. No name was associated with this "mexecutloner" 
comment. 

• I•·· r• 1 lhas no knowledge or evidence of racial profiling by any BOO or TSO at HNL. He has 
never witnessed any such behaviors targeting one ethnic group vs. another ethnic group . 

• it·�tf• has never heard of any BDOs sleeping in a cot or sleeping whilj on duty.I He first 

,
ear o the sleeping �!legation on the. KITV4 news report. After the fact, . � (l heard that 

' ·1 had brought m a  cot but nothing more than that. 

• � has no knowledge of any TSA employee testing ositive for cocaine. He first heard OTTtieaifegation on the KITV4 news report. After the fact, ib 1 • heard that the individual 
who had the positive drug. test was ['.!l I .11• h I 

• I "'".j' !had no knowledge of any HNL BDO having some sort of DEA connection which 
resulted in seizures of susQected drug currency. He first heard of this allegation on the KITV4 

news r:eport. After the fact, I 0 u• I learned that the individual named in the report was BDO C"1 Jbut he has no other information to provide. 

• l(tllo lhas no information or evidence of sexual harassment or hostile:µpP< en"\ronment 
and has not been exposed to any of these issues at the HNL workplace.C · _ opined that 
there will always be differences between various employees but overall he gets along well 
with about 95% of his colleagues.f n•it' I has a very positive impression of the BOO 
program and the BOO management at HNL. . 1111· 61 lis aware that I · "  1 1( "1 I is involved in some sort of snowboarding activities or 
videos. He has never seen the videos and is unaware of their content. 

• ... lm_·0 __ _.I advised that when he was a TSO, he had observed BOO 16' tJt 1 1<0 , I engage a 
passenger in a lengthy discussion about "under armor" athletic wear at HNL. It appeared that 
the passeng�me sort of connection to the "under armor" product or its distribution. 
According to� it appeared that 11 '0; I was trying to get the individual to 

Case Number: Case Tille: 
M-1 2-0755 BDO practices at HNL 
Revised February 28, 2006 SEl'iSI llVE SECURI IT INFORMAi ION/t!QR QffiCIAL USE ONLY 
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SENSI i IVE SECUFtlT'f INf6ffMATION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW OR ACTIVITY (continuation sheet) 
provide some sort of sponsorship or possibly provide "under armor" products for his use 
during his snowboarding excursions. Yeomans felt that this was unethical behavior. 

At the conclusion of the interview, ... l(b-�s_) _ _.I Provided a signed, sworn statement. 

Attached: ltb1<61 I Signed, sworn statement by BOO._ ______ _. dated January 22, 2012. 

Case Number: 

, M-1 2-0755 
: Case Title: ' BDO practices at HNL 

Revised February 28, 2006 
&:!fd81ifls I! !S1!8elRIYI IUP'!RMJICTlel4st §it Qi I ICIAL USE OIQEf 

Rosemary.Law
Text Box
(b)(6)
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SWORN STATEMENT 
Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

'ffl't 
1 , having been duly sworn, hereby make the following statement to '"-������--���-"��-

S-Ji.. V1tv i ff-,j..,O SIJ- Jt11.)N.t1i�as been i4entlfied to me as a federal law enforcement officer and sp�cial 

agent with the Transportation Security Administration, Office of Inspection. I am making this statement of my own free will. 

without any dures� or coercion. 

* * * SEE ATIACHED STATEMENT *' * *  

I have read this entire statement consisting of --12.__pages. ! have be�n given the opportunity to make any corrections 
necessal)' to make the statement accurate. All of the information cont.ai.ned in this statement is true and accurate to the best of 
my knowledge and belief. J understand that I may be prosecuted for perjlll)' or making false >:ratcmenl� if I have intentionally 
misrepresented anything contained in this statement. I have not inte ti nail omitte · o ati ledge I have 
that relates to the matters under investigation or review. Int(" 

Page 1 of �3 
Form INVD-S3 (Rev. 4/1/2007) 

c· I Agent -rJJF©-H 
ransportation Security Administr-.ition / · (J l_... 

Department of Homeland Security /, · /Jv-. 
Authority to administer oaths: 5 U .S.C. § 303 

1-- 2 Z.-/2-
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�{lf!ll I 

� 

1,s 11·· I Statement of · 
January, 22, 2012 at HNL FSD Office 

I ll,, I _" ---------- , am allowing SA Joseph M. Viviano to write this 
statement for me. •l ! � 

t .  2..2 . \"2..-
Date 

1 have been employed with TSA since December, 2007 as a TS 0 in  Honolulu. I 
August , 201 1  I entered into the BOO Program at HNL. D 
I am currently assigned to the BOO full time day shift - 4:00 am to 12:30 pm with 
RDOs as Wednesday and Thursday. 

Sometime in November, 201 1 ,  I saw a KJTV4 news report which alleged racial 
profilin9 and other imP.roprietles by the HNL BOO program. One of my friends, 
either I 116> lor F 01 I had called me and advised that she 
had also seen the KITV4 report when it first aired. 

I had heard in casual conversation amongst co-workers that the individuals 
portrayed as whistleblowers on the KITV4 report must have been persons who 
were familiar with the BOO program. 

I wish to point out that I have no outside poonectjoo or �stablished relatf � 
,.�he followjnq HNL }SA employees � 1 Fl)} L'.__J 
L..:.Jorl*w: other than daily work interaction. 

Regarding the allegations made by the TSA whistleblowers in the KllV4 news 
report which aired in November, 201 1 -

• I do not know the identities of the two individuals who were portrayed as 
the whistleblowers who had appeared on the KITV4 news report in 
November, 201 1 .  

• About 2 years ago, I had heard some of my fellow TSOs mention the term 
"mexecutioner" in passing in reference to a BOO. But I just dismissed it as 
idle gossip and gave it no further consideration. No name was associated 

D 
with the nickname of "mexecutioner". 

. 

'"'"io.,....._...c;..----. 

z/3 
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I ' 

• I have no knowledge of racial profiling at HNL by the BDO program or ao 
members of the program. I have never witnessed any such behaviors that 
would target one ethnic group vs. another ethnic group. There is no hint 
of racism of any kind among fellow BDOs or the Hawaiian population in 
general. The Hawaiian culture here is very diverse. 

• I have no knowledge of any HNL BDOs sleeping in a cot and I did not 
witness any TSA employees sleeping in a cot or sleeping during their 
assigned shift at HNL. I first heard of this allegation on the KITV4 news 
report. After the fact I heard that J(b1(€I )had brought in the cot but 
nothing further than that. 

• I have no knowledge of any TSA employee testing positive for cocaine. I 
first heard of this allegation on the KITV4 news report. After the fact I 
heard that the individual who had the positive drug test was Q91,__j0_11'_'• _ 

_, 

• I have no knowledge of a HNL BOO having some sort of DEA connection 
which resulted in the seizures of unreported currency. I first heard of this 
�nf�r�ation on th� KITV4 news report. �i::�the fact I heardl that the 
md1v1dual named 1n the report was BOO · but I have no 
other information than that. 

• I have no information of sexual harassment or hostile work environment 
and have not been exposed to either during my employment with TSA 
HNL. There are someUmes differences between the various employees in 
the BOO program at HNL which are to be expected. But overall everyone 
gets along pretty well and I get along well with about 95% of my 
colleagues. 

It I have a very positive experience with the BOO program and the BOO 
management. 

111°'/Jhj 1 ' 
• I was aware of the fact that was involved in some sort of 

snowboarding activities or videos but nothing more than that. I have never 
seen the videos and I am unaware of their content. 

• When I was with the TSO force at HNL, I observed I�'' '_' ____ _ 
engage a passenger in a discussion about "under armor" athletic wear. It 
appeared to me that he spent a lot of time talking to this passenger 
reference this subject. It could have been construed as inappropri_,_,, _ __...__ 

__ 
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ATTACHMENT 

# 49 
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S�NSl"fl"tl! SECURITY INFORM1'TION 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 
OR ACTIVITY 

t-=-----:-:�---- " . ·-------

Type of Activity:. 
k8J Personal Interview 
D Telephone lnteNiew [gj Records Review D Other 

Activity or Interview of: 

Dana Chong Tim 
Assistant Federal Security Director for Law 
Enforcement (AFSD-LE) 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) and 

. ··-··-------. . . .  

Date arid Tirne: 

January 23, 2012 

Conducted by: 

Special Agent Keith A. Edwards 

Location of Interview/Activity: 
Transportation Security Administration Office 
(TSA) 
300 Rogers Blvd. Suite 45 
Honolulu, Hi 968 1 9  

SubJect Matter/Remarks 

AFSD-LE Dana Chong Tim reported that he routinely receives information from Jaw enforcement 
agencies, such as the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) drug task force and Honolulu Police 
Department concerning suspicious or wanted persons. 

AFSD-LE Tim stated that upon receipt of this information he passes this information to the HNL 
coordinating center and the behavioral detection officer (BDO) managers for distribution to the BOO 
workforce. At no time, has this type of information been given solely to any individual. 

Dang Chong Tim provided a signed statement. 

-
. c=-a-se--:N.,..-u-m-be-r:--------,-C-=-a

-
se--:T=it,....le:

----------
-------------···

-; 

i M-1 2�.0755 BOO practices at HNL 
S£NSi'i tV1CStCORI I I 1!4FtiitiitA lic)ttf1Pelt: erPl(#l.:tc'ls tsfi 8PIJs\' 

(Revised 12-1 S..08) 

I 
i 
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Page 1 ofl 

Sworn Statement 

I ,  ____ D=an�a"-"C"'h"'on"'g""T"""'imw..... __ ,, have sworn to tell the truth in this 

statement on this date, 01123/2012. I offer this statement so that the facts 

might be known. 

I am contacted regularly by various law enforcement entities to include DEA and 

!h�J>J.arcotics Vice Qjyision Task Force assigned to the Honolulu International 

Airport. During such contacts I have received information pertaining to wanted 

and or suspicious persons and or incidents. Upon receipt of this information I 

have made it a practice to forward said information to the Honolylu Coordination 

Center as well as the Behavior Detection Managers for distribution to the work 

force. The information is distributed to the work force utilizing e-mail and 

subsequent shift briefs. At no time has information of this nature been provided to 

a sole individual. nor has anyone to my knowledge oersonally gained by the 

receipt of such. To my knowledge, no one in TSA-HNL is a confidential informant 

nor have they benefited monetarily by working with a Law Enforcement Agency 

in this capacity. Law enforcement agencies frequently work in conjunction with 

the BDO's assigned to HNL and heve received numerous referrals that have 

resulted in arrests for various offenses. I have not received a cornplaint relative to 

these referrals: In contrast 1 have received oositive feedback regarding the 

partnering of TSA and our law enforcement personnel. 

Staletnent Ry: 
Signature: 
Witnessed By: 
Signature: 




